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GRANT CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT
OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY
AND
PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI

This Grant Contract issued and entered into pursuant to Substitute Resolution RS2022-1734, by and
between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County (“Metro”), and PLANNED
PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI, (“Recipient’), is for the provision of sexual
and reproductive health education services and supplies, as further defined in the "SCOPE OF
PROGRAM'". The Recipient’s annual report and audit are incorporated herein by reference.

A. SCOPE OF PROGRAM:
A1 The Recipient will use the funds to:

Provide comprehensive sexual health education in Nashville and Davidson County, distribution of
safer sex supply kits, and distribution of accurate information about reproductive health care.

The Recipient will not use the funds in any manner that would violate Tennessee law including,
but not limited to, for the purposes of assisting a person in obtaining a "criminal abortion" that is
prohibited by Tenn. Code Ann. § 39-15-213 or for travel to another state for the purpose of
obtaining an abortion that would be a criminal abortion if performed in Tennessee. .

A.2.  The Recipient must spend these funds consistent with the Grant Spending Plan, attached and
incorporated herein as Attachment 1. The Recipient must collect data to evaluate the
effectiveness of their services and must provide those results to Metro upon request.

A.3. The Recipient will only utilize these funds for services the Recipient provides to documented
residents of Davidson County. Documentation of residency may be established with a recent
utility bill; voter's registration card; driver's license or other government issued-ID; current record
from a school showing address; affidavit by landlord; or affidavit by a nonprofit treatment, shelter,
half-way house, or homeless assistance entity located within Davidson County. Recipient agrees
that it will not use Metro funding for services to non-Davidson County residents.

A4 Additionally, the Recipient must collect data on the primary county of residence of the clients it
serves and provide that data to Metro upon request.

B. GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

B.1. Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant will be twelve (12) months, commencing on June
6, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2023. Metro will have no obligation for services rendered by the
Recipient that are not performed within this term.

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

C.1. Maximum Liability. In no event will Metro’s maximum liability under this Grant Contract exceed
Five Hundred Thousand and No/100th dollars ($500,000.00). The Grant Spending Plan will
constitute the maximum amount to be provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient’s
obligations hereunder. The Grant Spending Plan line items include, but are not limited to, all
applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred
by the Recipient.
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C.2.

C.3.

C.4.

C.5.

C.6.

C.7.

C.8.

Subject to modification and amendments as provided in section D.2 of this agreement, this
amount will constitute the Grant Amount and the entire compensation to be provided to the
Recipient by Metro.

Payment Methodology. The Recipient will only be compensated for actual costs based upon
the Grant Spending Plan, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1.

Upon progress toward the completion of the work, as described in Section A of this Grant
Contract, the Recipient shall submit invoices and any supporting documentation as requested by
Metro to demonstrate that the funds are used as required by this Grant, prior to any payment for
allowable costs. Such invoices shall be submitted no more often than monthly and indicate at a
minimum the amount charged by Spending Plan line-item for the period invoiced, the amount
charged by line-item to date, the total amount charged for the period invoiced, and the total
amount charged under this Grant Contract to date.

Recipient must send all invoices to Metro Payment Services, PO Box 196301, Nashville TN
37219-6301.

Final invoices for the contract period should be received by Metro Payment Services by July 15,
2022. Any invoice not received by the deadline date will not be processed and all remaining
grant funds will expire.

Annual Expenditure Report. The Recipient must submit a final grant Annual Expenditure
Report, to be received by Metro’s Office of Grants and Accountability (OGA), within 45 days of
the end of the Grant Contract. Said report must be in form and substance acceptable to Metro
and must be prepared by a Certified Public Accounting Firm or the Chief Financial Officer of the
Recipient Organization.

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro will not prejudice Metro’s right to
object to the invoice or any other related matter. Any payment by Metro will neither be construed
as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor as an approval of any of the costs
included therein.

Unallowable Costs. The Recipient's invoice may be subject to reduction for amounts included in
any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Metro, on the basis of audits
or monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant Contract, to constitute
unallowable costs. Utilization of Metro funding for services to non-Davidson County residents is
not allowed.

Deductions. Metro reserves the right to adjust any amounts which are or become due and
payable to the Recipient by Metro under this or any Contract by deducting any amounts which are
or become due and payable to Metro by the Recipient under this or any Contract.

Travel Compensation. Payment to the Recipient for travel, meals, or lodging is subject to
amounts and limitations specified in Metro’s Travel Regulations and subject to the Grant
Spending Plan.

Electronic Payment. Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient have on
file with Metro a completed and signed “ACH Form for Electronic Payment”. If Recipient has not
previously submitted the form to Metro or if Recipient’s information has changed, Recipient will
have thirty (30) days to complete, sign, and return the form. Thereafter, all payments to the
Recipient, under this or any other contract the Recipient has with Metro, must be made
electronically.
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D.6.

D.7.
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STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Required Approvals. Metro is not bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be modified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by appropriate
legislation of the Metropolitan Council.

Termination for Cause. Metro shall have the right to terminate this Grant Contract immediately
if Metro determines that Recipient, its employees or principals have engaged in conduct or
violated any federal, state or local laws which affect the ability of Recipient to effectively provide
services under this Grant Contract. Should the Recipient fail to properly perform its obligations
under this Grant Contract or if the Recipient violates any terms of this Grant Contract, Metro will
have the right to immediately terminate the Grant Contract and the Recipient must return to Metro
any and all grant monies for services or programs under the grant not performed as of the
termination date. The Recipient must also return to Metro any and all funds expended for
purposes contrary to the terms of the Grant Contract. Such termination will not relieve the
Recipient of any liability to Metro for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Recipient.

Subcontracting. The Recipient may not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a subcontract
for any of the services performed under this Grant Contract without obtaining the prior written
approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors, the Recipient will be
considered the prime Recipient and will be responsible for all work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warrants that no part of the total Grant Amount will be paid
directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation, or gifts in
exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or consultant to the Recipient
in connection with any work contemplated or performed relative to this Grant Contract.

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person will be
excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination
in the performance of this Grant Contract or in the employment practices of the Recipient on the
grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or any other classification
which is in violation of applicable laws. The Recipient must, upon request, show proof of such
nondiscrimination and must post in conspicuous places, available to all employees and
applicants, notices of nondiscrimination.

Records. The Recipient must maintain documentation for all charges to Metro under this Grant
Contract. The books, records, and documents of the Recipient, insofar as they relate to work
performed or money received under this Grant Contract, must be maintained for a period of three
(3) full years from the date of the final payment or until the Recipient engages a licensed
independent public accountant to perform an audit of its activities. The books, records, and
documents of the Recipient insofar as they relate to work performed or money received under this
Grant Contract are subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by Metro
or its duly appointed representatives. Records must be maintained in accordance with the
standards outlined in the Non-Profit Grants Manual. The financial statements must be prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Monitoring. The Recipient’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this Grant
Contract are subject to monitoring and evaluation by The Metropolitan Office of Financial
Accountability or Metro’s duly appointed representatives. The Recipient must make all audit,
accounting, or financial records, notes, and other documents pertinent to this grant available for
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D.9.

D.10.

D.12.

D. 13.

D. 14.

D.15

review by the Metropolitan Office of Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro’s
representatives, upon request, during normal working hours.

Reporting. The Recipient must submit an Interim Program Report, to be received by Metro’s
Office of Grants and Accountability (OGA), by no later than December 15, 2023, and a Final
Program Report, to be received by Office of Grants and Accountability (OGA), within 45 [forty-
five] days of the end of the Grant Contract. Said reports shall detail the outcome of the activities
funded under this Grant Contract.

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict
performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this agreement is not a
waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant, condition, or provision. No term or condition
of this Grant Contract is considered to be waived, modified, or deleted except by a written
amendment by the appropriate parties as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Insurance. The Recipient agrees to carry adequate public liability and other appropriate forms of
insurance, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract.

Metro Liability. Metro will have no liability except as specifically provided in this Grant Contract.

Independent Contractor._ Nothing herein will in any way be construed or intended to create a
partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metro or to create the relationship of
principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The Recipient must not hold
itself out in a manner contrary to the terms of this paragraph. Metro will not become liable for any
representation, act, or omission of any other party contrary to the terms of this paragraph.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

(a) Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Metro, its officers, agents and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees for injuries or damages
arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Recipient, its
officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or independent contractors, in connection
with the performance of the contract, and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney
fees arising from any failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub
or independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to, labor laws
and minimum wage laws.

(b) Metro will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Recipient from any
claims, regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that the Recipient may
provide.

(c) Recipient will pay Metro any expenses incurred as a result of Recipient’s failure to fulfill any
obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

(d) Recipient’s duties under this section will survive the termination or expiration of the grant.

Force Majeure. "Force Majeure Event" means fire, flood, earthquake, elements of nature or acts
of God, wars, riots, civil disorders, rebellions or revolutions, acts of terrorism or any other similar
cause beyond the reasonable control of the party. Except as provided in this Section, any failure
or delay by a party in the performance of its obligations under this Grant Contract arising from a
Force Majeure Event is not a breach under this Grant Contract. The non-performing party will be
excused from performing those obligations directly affected by the Force Majeure Event, and only
for as long as the Force Majeure Event continues, provided that the party continues to use
diligent, good faith efforts to resume performance without delay. Recipient will promptly notify
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D.17.
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D.20.

D. 21.

D.22.

Metro within forty-eight (48) hours of any delay caused by a Force Majeure Event and will
describe in reasonable detail the nature of the Force Majeure Event.

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract. Metro
shall have the right to terminate this Grant Contract at any time for failure of Recipient to comply
with applicable federal, state or local laws in connection with the performance of services under
this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The validity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract and any
and all extensions and/or modifications thereof will be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue for legal action concerning this Grant
Contract will be in the courts of Davidson County, Tennessee.

Completeness. This Grant Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding between
the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and conditions
of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and all prior understandings,
representations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties relating hereto, whether
written or oral.

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and will not be construed as part of
this Grant Contract.

Metro Interest in Equipment. The Recipient will take legal title to all equipment and to all motor
vehicles, hereinafter referred to as "equipment," purchased totally or in part with funds provided
under this Grant Contract, subject to Metro's equitable interest therein, to the extent of its pro rata
share, based upon Metro's contribution to the purchase price. "Equipment" is defined as an
article of nonexpendable, tangible, personal property having a useful life of more than one year
and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds $5,000.00.

The Recipient agrees to be responsible for the accountability, maintenance, management, and
inventory of all property purchased totally or in part with funds provided under this Grant Contract.
Upon termination of the Grant Contract, where a further contractual relationship is not entered
into, or at any time during the term of the Grant Contract, the Recipient must request written
approval from Metro for any proposed disposition of equipment purchased with Grant funds. All
equipment must be disposed of in such a manner as parties may agree as appropriate and in
accordance with any applicable federal, state or local laws or regulations.

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract will inure to the benefit of and
will be binding upon the respective successors and assignees of the parties hereto. Except for
the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this contract nor any of the rights
and obligations of Recipient hereunder may be assigned or transferred in whole or in part without
the prior written consent of Metro. Any such assignment or transfer will not release Recipient
from its obligations hereunder. Notice of assignment of any rights to money due to Recipient
under this Contract must be sent to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance.

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It will be a breach of ethical standards for any person to offer, give or
agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or former employee to
solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a gratuity or an offer of
employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation,
preparations of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content
of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any
other advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim
or controversy in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or
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controversy or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement of a contract or
subcontract or to any solicitation or proposal therefore. It will be a breach of ethical standards for
any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under
a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or a person associated therewith,
as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. Breach of the provisions of this
paragraph is, in addition to a breach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may
result in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment or suspension from participation in
Metropolitan Government contracts.

Communications and Contacts. All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other
communications from the Recipient required or contemplated by this Grant Contract must be in
writing and must be made by facsimile transmission, or by first class mail, addressed to the
respective party at the appropriate facsimile number or address as set forth below or to such
other party, facsimile number, or address as may be hereafter specified by written notice.

Metro
For contract-related matters: For enquiries regarding invoices:
Office of Grants and Accountability Office of Management & Budget
700 President Ronald Reagan Way, Ste 201 700 President Ronald Reagan Way, Ste 201
PO Box 196300 PO Box 196300
Nashville, TN 37219-6300 Nashville, TN 37219-6300

(615) 862-6726 phone, (615) 880-2800 fax  (615) 862-6509, (615) 880-2800 fax

Recipient

Eileen Fickes

Grants and Research Manager

Planned Parenthood of Tennessee and North Mississippi
50 Poplar Avenue, Ste. 250

Nashville, TN 37228

615-277-1463 phone

Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, and entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member
of Congress in connection with this grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient
must complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in
accordance with its instructions.

C. The Recipient will require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-grants, subcontracts, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subcontractors of
federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.
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D.25. Certification Regarding Debarment and Convictions.

a.

b.

Recipient certifies that Recipient, and its current and future principals:

are not presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment from participation
in any federal or state grant program;

have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Grant Contract been convicted
of fraud, or a criminal offence in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (federal, state, or local) grant;

have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Grant Contract been convicted
of embezzlement, obstruction of justice, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; and

are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally charged by a government entity
(federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses detailed in sections
D.25(a)(ii) and D.25(a)(iii) of this certification.

Recipient shall provide immediate written notice to Metro if at any time Recipient learns
that there was an earlier failure to disclose information or that due to changed
circumstances, its principals fall under any of the prohibitions of Section D.25(a).

D.26. Effective Date. This contract will not be binding upon the parties until it has been signed first by
the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan Government and
has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been so signed and filed, this
contract will be effective as of the date first written above.

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK.)
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THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT
OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON
COUNTY:

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF
FUNDS:

DocuSigned by:

g) !lln f(nl/« N BAN
Eﬂéﬁé&t@ssafeEi_narﬁce

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY

DocuSigned by:

Perrvick C. Smith
dropetitan. Attorney

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK:

Metropolitan Clerk

RECIPIENT: PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF
TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI

ocuSigne

By(: L’»’VISILAL {ﬂl/\,mu
53AD2998585049§...
Title: Chair, Board of Directors
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METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY
GRANT SPENDING PLAN

RECIPIENT
E-

Planned Parenthood of Tennessee and North Mississippi

CONTRACT GRANT PERIOD: 06/06/23 thro

THE FOLLOWING IS APPLICABLE TO EXPENSES PLANNED TO BE INCURRED DURING THE
ugh 06/30/23

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM METRO GRANT RECIPIENT TOTAL PROJECT
CATEGORY FUNDS MATCH
(participation)

Salaries and Wages $222,397.00 $222,397.00
Benefits and Taxes [(25%)] $55.599.00 $55.599.00
Professional Fees $0.00
Supplies $106,381.00 $106,381.00
Communications $0.00
Postage and Shipping $0.00
Occupancy $0.00
Equipment Rental and Maintenance $0.00
Printing and Publications $0.00
Travel/ Conferences and Meetings $15.623.00 $15.623.00
Insurance $0.00
Specific Assistance to Individuals $100,000.00 $100,000.00
Other Non-Personnel $0.00

GRAND TOTAL $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00
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IRS Department of the Treasury
Infernal Revenue Service

620954

In reply refer to: 072857837

ATLANTA GA 39901-0001 May 13, 20816 LIR 4l68C 0
62-6073178 goo0o00D 00
00625408
BCDC: TE

PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS
REGION INC

2430 POPLAR AVE

MEMPHIS TH 38112-3246

Emplover ID Kumber: 42-6073178
Form 99¢ required: YES

Dear Taxpaver:

We issued vou a determination letter in December 1967, recognizing
vou as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501¢(c}
(3).

Bur records also indicate vou're not a private foundation as defined
under IRC Section 509{(a) because vou're described in IRC Section
RB92(al)(2y.

Donors can deduct contributions thev make te vou as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRC Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2b522.

In the heading of this letter, we indicated whether you must file an

annual information return. If a return is required, vou must file Form
998, 990-EZ, 990-N, or 990-PF by the 1bth day of the fifth month after
the end of vour annual accounting period. IRC Section 6033(3) provides
that, if vou don't file a required annual information return or notice
for three consecutive years, vour exempt status will be automatically
revoked on the filing due date of the third reguired return or notice.

For tax forms, instructions, and publications, visit wwuw.irs.gcov ar
call 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3878).

If vou have questions,; call 1-877-829-5540 between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.,
local time, Mondav through Friday (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
Timel.
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0752857837

May 13, 2016 LTR 4168C 0
62-6073178 8008080 0O '
00025409

PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS
REGION INC

2430 POPLAR AVE

MEMPHIS TN 38112-3246

Sincerely vours,

Teri M. Johnson
Operations Manager, AM Ops. 3
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be “ixed b- i.e br-laws, the ssid terr net, howaver, %o sxcsed twe Jmers. fll officers

neld over until their successers are culy slacted and qualifisd,
Tne general purpcsas of the orpenirat’on aret To edusate the -'blilc soicerning

tie redical, scolsl, eumenic and etinicsl inportnnée of birth contrely to provide clinizil o
SRt I LT s tmral;*& - - %"ﬂsm oy rn t WIS e
Control Federztion of Americs,

. e curcceae for whdoh t7 13 chertur is rranted are purely eduvoticnal end

= -w inciriiel cmﬁm& thg manbers T re

g - T -3 .a:': ma= b tnT dme valuntare dfeanles Lhe JTocer

FRIiE
g 5 . —
.. - . ! . T _— st ba Fam b e PR
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A violation of any of the provisicns of ihis charter shall subject the
sorparstion to dlssolution at the instande of the State,

. Phts; charter is wb.!ui to mod! fication or awendsent; snd in osase seid
sodifieation or amendeents is not secepted, corporete business s to cesss, and the assets
und property, sfter paymnt of debts, are to be conveyed, &8 aforssaid, to some other I
oorporet 1°n holding & etarter for purposes not scnrected with individual profft. —— W] '
Asquisscenas in any modificstion. thus declsred shall » detersined in a meeting speaially T
¢alled for that purposs, and only those voting In favor of the modiftistion aball thevee

aftar compose the dorpcration,
. The means, sssets, incore or other property (I the corcoration shell not . I
‘ be smployed direstly or Indireoctly for any other purpose whatever than to ascorplish the
* legitimate objests of 1ts creation, snd b no lmplicctien shall tt possess the powar to

l isaus notes or ourrenty, deal in curreney, uctes or coln, Luy or sell products, or engapge

i r’mfﬁiﬂw‘ 1;_& A ‘

in sa¥ kind of trading opsratiocn, nor rold any more resl ectsate than is necesssry for
legitimata purpcsed.

Rxpulsion shall be the only repedr for the nonpayment of dues by the
members, and there lhpll b no Individua)l Llia®ility sasinst the membera for sorperute
debts, but the entire corperats property shell be lisble for the olairms of creditors.

. ¥e, the undersimed, spply to the Stats of Tennesses, by urt&e of the lews
of the lend, for a Charter of Incorporstion for the purposes and with the powers, desclared

e SAEE R AR S e e

in the forezoing instrument.
WITHESS our hands this 18 dav of April, 1639, ' ' : '

M8, wOTCID'® ©olily, Ol

¥rs, Frank O,3arton, Jv,

Allred B.P:t:::ng k.v:t!-.ea:. ¥rs, Decrze Lee Newton

‘Mpa. Lawrenge Coo
Alfred B,Pittmen, Jr,

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF SHELEY
; Pernontlly mppesrad before me, Zers Wome:k, Notary Publis of safd Sounty

the within named Alfred B.Pittoan, Jr., the subseribine witness and Inonrpoerator, with
shom I am personally sequiinted and who acknowledred that he sasoutsd the within application

e,

for a charter of inoorporation for the purpesss thereln contained ana #xpresagd, and the
aald Alfred B.pittman, Jr., subsariding witness to the signatures subseribed to the within _
arplication, heing firet duly sworn, depozed end seid thet he is personally soquainted with l l

the within named inaorporetions, ¥ps., Jercme P.Lone, Jr., Mra, Lawrence Coa, vra.?"&eorm
Lee Wewton, &nd Ere. Frenk O.Barton, Jr,, and thet thev did, in his presence, . .nek:owladm

S v e e

that they ezequted the within anllontim for a charter of fncorperotion for thre purroses

; ‘tharein contained snd exresssd, ! l
Ly By oS T W e 'E‘LQW‘ — b_ y . l R

- A S . am. - *ﬂ?"ﬂ‘ﬁ p,,mnxm

g 18th day of April, mm.
‘ ) Zors Wommok

oy e =i . —
L i Ry - . 2 4 it b 5 - - - *_‘ -. -‘_;-_< : »Mae 2,1.‘ .ﬂ_‘ : “ e e E
- — "'i'--‘ -3:“9"'"‘ "Gln-—-q-m m»m" e g

' . e - .
= IR %me WO TERRTNE M an ad e ve —— #®
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APPLICATION FOR AGNDMENT 70 CHARTER OF
BIRTH CONTROL ASSOCIATION OF NEMPHIS .

' . WHERESS, At s special meeting 5f the merbers of the Birth Control Association

. of Memphis, properly called und held In Memphis, Tennesste on the 25:h day of March,
1943, & resolution was wnanimously ;essed snd adopted authorizing Mrs. Lawrencs Coe, the
¥reaident ét sald amsccintion wd Bra, Ciorge Lee Newton, Seeretn;y of the “syiciation,
t> apply for &n amendment to the - arter of the sald Assoclation for the purpoasc of
changing the name from "Birth Contrel Asscciation of Hemphis™ to "The Memphis Associatisn
for Planned Parenthood, Inc.®

. XO¥, THEHLFORE, We, the undersignen President and Secretery of the id

Apsociation, wpply to the Stnto ol Tennessee, by virtue or the general laws of the land,
for an wmenime.t to tne smid charter of the said corpoeration for the purposs of changing
thit nete of the sald Associsiion ss herelnabove set out,

' l WITKESS Our hunds this ds; of sy, 19i1,

Mra, Lawrence Joe

resident, r an=
trol Associatlon of
Kermphia

Mrs, f;eche Lee Newton
~ecretary, blrth Control Ksiocla-

tion cf uemph;u

o]
- STATE JF TeNVESSEE
= COUNTY OF SHELBY _
Peraonally apreared Lefore me, , & Notary Public duly
qualifled snd scting, tuc within nered ¥rs. Lasrence Coe wnd Mre. George Lee Kewton,
Fresldent snd Secretsry respectively of Birth Control assaclation of !enpyil. with whow
I wb persorelly scyusinted, wnd who wcknowledged thut they executed the within applics=
' ' tion for an prendment to the charter of incorporation for tle purrcse therein conteined
niid eapressed,

KITNESS My hand and offlelsl seal this 27th day of May, 1941,

Qttilla Haugp
SiAL  ~Wohiy Fabiie—

My commlasston expiiea January Sth, 1945

1, JOE L, LAKR, Sacretary of 3Stats, do hersby certffy that this Amendment to
Charter, wi'h Certificate attsched, of which the foregoling 18 & true CopY, wad this day

-

regtstered and certifled by me, this, the 23th day of May, 15L1.

J2 C. CARF,. Secretury of State

- s - —— - [ — pe— .
- - - - Sl = -l .
H - P P
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P.51, PAGE 6216

APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT
TO THE CHARTER OF
THE MEMPHIS ASSOCIATION FOR PLANNED PARENTHOOD, INC.

. WHEREAS, at a speclal meeting of the members of the
Memphis Assocliation For Planned Parenthood. Inc., properly
called and held in Memphis, Tennessee on the 24th day of
November, 1967, a resolutlon was unanimously passed and adopt-
ed authorizing Mrs. A. R. Scharff, Jr., the President of sald
Assoclatlon, and Mrs. James Hill, Secretary of the Assoclation,
‘te apply for ar amendment to the Charter of the sr1d Association
for the purpose of qualifying saild Associgtion as an exempt or-
ganization uﬁder Sectlon 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1954, as follows:

"Further, the members may, at ény time, voluntarily

dissolve the corporatior by conveyance of its

assets and property to the State of Tennessee, any

county or municipality of the'State or to any other

corporation holding a Charter from the State of

Tennessee for the purposes not of individual pro-

fit or to such organization or organizations organiz-

ed and cperated exclgsively for charitable, educa-

tlonal, religlous or gscientific purpo#es as shall

at the time qualify as an exempt organization or

orggnizations under Section 501(e)(3) of ‘the In-

ternal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding

provicion of any future United States Internal
Royénue law}, first providing for cofporate debtg;
provided, that assets and property so conveyed
8h1all be ussd by tue grantee for purposes similar

ta those of the conveying corporation,
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whenevur there has been no meeting of the
menbers for a period of five (5) years or
morv, and because of the death of members
or the condition orrthe corporate records
it 1s Impossible to notlfy a sufficient
numbeor of members to constitute a quorum,
notice of a meeting of the members may be
made by publlcation in some newspaper in
the county where such corporation has 1ts
rrincipal location, at least thirty (30)
dazys before such neebing shall be held.
The members attending such meeting shall
be deemed to constitute a quorum for the

purposes of electlng directors or trustees,

and authorizing such directors or trustees

to dissolve the corporation and convey its

prop :rty andassets in accordance with

Tennessee Code Anﬁotateq Title 48 Section

ilzo." _

NOW, THEREFORE, WE, the undersigned President and

Secretary of the Assoclatlon apply to the State of Tennessee

by virtue of the general laws of the land, for amendment to

rale Charter of the said corporation ror the purpose of quali-
Tying saild Association as an <xempt tanization under Section

501(c){3) of the Unlted States Internal Revehue Code of 195*

or the corresponding provision of any future 'nited States

lnterral Revenue law as hereinabove set out,

-t

# :
Witness our hands this 24th day of November, 1967, a

President /o
The Mempl.ls Asscciation For
Planned Parenthood, Inc.

‘Seeretary of i
The Memphis Association For
Planned Parenthood, Inc.
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P.51, PAGE 6218

3TATE. OF TENNESSEE )

CUUNTY UF SHELBY )_

| - L
Pevsonally appeared before me, %‘N@Oﬂ-«xﬂp L.
r

4 Notary Publice, duly qualified and acting, the within named Mrs.

A. R, 3charff Jr., and Mrs. James Hill, President and Secretary,
respectively, of The Memphis Association For Planned Parenthood,
Inc., with whom I am personally acquainted, and who acknowledged
thet they executed the within application for an amendment to
the Charter of Incorporaticn for the purposé therein contained
and expressed.

Witness my hand and official seal this.jzg:ffpay of

November, 1967.

Yuonomnincion expires:

7-23 - 74

vy
-

AT LS e AT
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P-51, PAGE 6219

I, JOE C, CARR, Secretary of State, do hereby certify
that this amendment to charter, with certificate attached, the

foregoing of which is a trues copy, was this day registered ard

certified to by me, This the I8t day of December, 1967,

JOE C, CARR,

SECRETARY OF STATE

FEE: $3.00
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MAY 24, 1972 | P-54, PAGE 2785

RESTATED CHARTER OF
THE MEMPHIS ASSOCIATION FOR PLANNED PARENTHOOD, INC.
Under Section 48-304 of the GENERAL CORFORATION ACT

PART I
v \4‘\ i

(a) The name of the éorporation is The Memphis

Association For Planned Parenthood, Inc.

(b) The dﬁration of the corporation is perpetual.

(c) The address of the principal office of che
corporation in this state shall be in Memphis, Shelby County,
Tennessee, ” | | |

{(d) The cotporation is not for profif.

(e) The puﬁposes for which the cbrpofation is
or;anize& are: (a) to promofé pubiic accéptance, intaraat
and involvement in planned parenthbod through education and
pablic relations; and (b) to promota, devalop and implement
appropriate family planning services. | - '

(f) Tke corporation is to have no members.

(g) The business and affairs of the go;poration
shall be managed by its Board of Directors. L '

(h) The Board of Directors may, at any time, volun-
‘tarily dissolve the corporation by cdnveyanca'of its assgets
and\prOperty to the State of Tennessee, any county or munici-

pality of the State or to any other corporation holding a
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pality of the State or to any other corporation holding a

Charter from the State of Tennessee for the purposes not of
individual profit or to such organization or organizations
organized and operated exclusively‘for charitable, edﬁchtionql,
religious or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify
.as-an exempt organization or organizationr under Section 301(¢) (3)
of the Interna. Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding
provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law),

first providing for corporate debts; provided, that assets

and property so conveyed shall be used by the-grahtee for




—— . R
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M..Y 24, 1972 | P-54, PAGE 2786

purposes similar to those of the conveying corporation.
|  Whenever there has becn no meeting of the Board
of I'irectors for a period of five (5) years or more, and
because of the death of Directors or the condition of the
corporate records it is impossible to notify a sufficient
| number of Directors to cénatitutg;gmgnorum, notice of a
meeting of the Board of Directors may be ﬁade by publicatioﬁ
in some newupaper in the county where such corporation has
its principal location, at least thirty (30) days before
- such meeting shall be held. The Directors attending such
meeting shall be deemed to constitute a quorum for the
purposes of électing directors or trustees, and authorizing
such directors or trustees to dissolve the corporation and
convéy its property and ‘assets in accordance ﬁith Tennessee
Code Annctated Title 48 Section 1120,
PART II.
{a) The date the origing; charter was filed by
the Secretary of State is April 19,_1939.- | |
| (b) . The restated Charter restates the text of
the origin&l Charter, as amandéd, by deleting the Charper,
as amended, and substituting this Restated Charter ghékefdre.
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P-54, PAGE 2797

1, JOE C. CARR, Secretary of State, do hareby certily
that this amendment to charter, with certificate attached, the
foregoing of which is a true ccpy, was this day registered and

certified to by me, This the 24th dayof  May, 1972,

JCE C, CARR,

SECRETARY CF STATE

FEE: $ 10.00
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S U TTTARTICLYS OF AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER
. OF

BSJUHﬁIEPﬁEhP S ASSOCIATION FOR PLANNED PARENTHOOD, INC.

ATy ﬁiﬂg‘gﬁg ,
5ECRETﬁﬁjg%uant to the provisions of §48-60-1G5 of the
Tennessee Nonprofit Cerporation Act, the undersigned
Corporation adepts the following articles of amendment
to its charter:

[
b

1. The name of the corporation is:
The Memphis Association for Planned Parenthood, Inc.

2, The text nf each amendmer* adopted is set forth below.
Noute that this amendment changes the corporation's registered

agent,
This corpeoration's entire charter, tcgether with all
amendments thereto and restated charters are all hereby
deleted and the following substituted therefor:
"l. The name of the corporaiicn is
MEr.’HIS PLANNED PARENTHQOD, INC.
2. This corporation is a public benefit corporation.
3. This corporation. is not a religious corporation.
4{a). The complete address of the ccrporation's

current registere? office in Tennessce is Suite 1900,
One Commerce Square, Memphis, Tennessse 38103, County

of Sheiby. :

4(b), The name of the curre-t registered agent, to
be located at the address listed in 4{a) is Teresa .J.
Sigmon, '

3. The complete addiess of the <Orporation's principal
off 'ce is: 1407 Union Avenue, Memphis, Tennessee 48104
County of Shelby.

6. This corporation is a nonprofit corporation,

7. This corporation will have no members .,

8. Upon dissolution the assets of the corporation
shall be distributeg and conveyed tu the Planned
Parenthood Federation of America, Inc.,, or any
organizatic: successor thereto; Provided that, at the
time of such dissolution angd distribution this
corporation is still affiliated with the Planned
Parerchood Corporation of America Or its successor

ar? chat organization is an organization exempt from
Federal taxation under §501{c)(3) of the Internatl #
Revenue Cocde of 1954 (or the corresponding provisien
of any future Unitesd Stz:es Internal Revenue latw),
Ctherwise, the board »f directors chall distribute the.
assets upon dissolution ko any crganization or organi=-
zations exempt from Feaeral taxation under §501(c)(3)
of the I arnal Revenue Code of 1954 {or the corres-
pondiag .rovision of any future United S’ ates Internal
Revenue law}), or to any county or municipality in thre
‘tate of Tennessee, or to the State of Tennessee.

7. The purpose of this organization is to provide
iv:dership in making *ffective mcans of voluntary
fercilivy cornzrol, including contraception, aborrion
and sterilization, available and fully .accessible to
all. The corporation shall seek +~ contrioute to the
health, stability and happiness of familw Tife and nf
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e al and technical education of the value of planned
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! \':"\ (] L-.'-_",, e ETe
- "

CieRE~ individual comprising the family. It shall provide

)

-

At
i

nthood and help to create public opinion favorable
égﬁgt; 1t shall provide medically approved birth

JUN

4tﬁi‘%$ﬁ§' gol information and services in conformity with the
RETA 13ws of Tennessee.

"

This corporation is organized and shall be
operated exclusively for charitable, scientific,
literary, religious and educational purposes; no part
of the net earnings of this corporation shall inure to
the benefit of anv individual:; no substantial part of
the activities shall be the carrying on o propaganda,
or otherwise attempting to influence iegislation; and
the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene
in (including the publishing or distribution of state-
ments) any political campaign on behalf of any candi-
~date for public office.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these
articles, this corporation shall not Carry on any
activity no permitted to be carried on by (a) a
corporation exempt from Federal income tax under
§501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or
the corresponding provision of any future United
States Internal Revenue law) or (b) a corporation,
contributions to which are deductible under
§170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954
{or the corresponding provision of any future United
ftates Internal Revenue law).

10. A director of this corporation shall nc. be’
personally liable to the corporation for the monetary
damages- for breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
except: (a) For any breach of the director's duty of
loyalty to the corporation; (b) For acts Oor omissions
not in good faith or which involve intentional mis-
conduct or a knowing violation of law; c- {c)} For
liability for unlawful distributions under §48-58-304
of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act. Nothing
h:rein is intended to alter or in any way affect the
immunity from suit provided directors under §48-58~-601
of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act.,"

- 3. The corporation is a nonprofit corporation.

4. The amendment was duly adop“ed on April 19, 1988 by the
board of directors, as there are no members,

5. Additional approval for the amendment (as permitted by
§48-60~301 of tne Tennessee Honprofit Corporation Act) was
not required. <

THE MEMPHIS ASSOCIATION FCR
PLANNED PARENTHOOD, INC.

b
mM@L«M
Blanche Deaderick

Secretary

e
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© Fot Office Use Only

W ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
; Bepartment af State TO THE CHARTER
Corporate Filings - (Nonprofit)

312 Eighth Avenue North
6N Fioor, William R. Srodgrass Tower
‘Nashville, TN 37243 : L

BN

AV 1502

CORPORATE CONTROL NUMBER (IF KNOWN) Q0 286.<)
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 48-60-105 OF THE TENNESSEE NONFROFI?‘*
CORPORATION ACT. THE UNDERSIGNED CORPCRATION ADOPTS THE FOLLOWING AR’HCLES

OF AMENDMENT TO TS CHARTER:

|. PLEASE INSERT THE NAME OF THE CORPORATION AS IT APPEARS OF RECORD --f;
meEmpriS Planpeh  TFARenT Hood, Lruc ] ;

[F CHANGING THE NAME, INSERT THE NEW NAME ON THE LINE BELOW:
MEmPiils Rebromar Plawved PaReEnT Hood, Tac

18 6 HY

2. PLEASE MARY THE BLOCK THAT APPLIES:

Al AMENDMENT IS TO BE EFFECTIVE WHEN FILED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE.
[] AMENDMENT IS TO BE EFFECTIVE, (MONTH, DAY, YEAR)
fNOTTO BE'LATE.R THAN THE 90TH DAY AFTER THE DATE THIS DOCUMENT IS FILED.) IF NEITHER BLOCK
1§ CHECKED, THE AMENDMENT WILL BE EFFECTIVE AT THE TIME COF EIL[NG

3. PLEASE INSERT ANY CHANGES THAT APPLY:

[NOTE: IF CHANGINGTHE PRINCIPAL OR REGISTERED AGENT ADDRESS, A COMPLETE STREET ADDRESS,
INCLUDING CITY. STATE. ZIP CODE. AND COUNTY MUST BE FROVIDED. |

4. THE CORPORATION IS ANONPROFIT CORPORATION. -

5. THE MANNER (IF NOT SET FORTH IN THE AMENDMENT) FOR IMPL® MENTATION OF ANY EX-
CHANGE, RECLASSEFICATION. OR CAMCELLATION OF MEMBERS!'HPS 1S AS FOLLLOWS:

6. THE AMENDMENT WAS DULY ADOPTED ON M%JQ_?_B__W (MONTH, DAY, YEAR)

BY (Please mark the block thit applics),

[0 THE INCORPORATORS WITHOUT MEMBER APPROVAL, AS SUCH WAS NOT REQUIRED:
Bl THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITHOUT MEMBER APPROVAL, AS SUCH WAS NOT REQUIRED.

{1 THE MEMBERS.

7. INDICATE WHICH OF THE FOLLOWING STATEMENTS APPLIES BY MARKING THE APPLICABLE
BLOCK: P

{71 ADDITIONAL APPROVAL FOR THE AMENDMENT (AS PERMITTED BY §48- 60-301 OF I‘HE
TENNESSEE NONPROFIT CORPORATION ACT) WAS NOT REQUIRED.  °
[} ADDITIONAL APPROVAL FOR THE AMENDMENT 'WAS REQUIRED BY 7{E CHARTER AND WAS

OBTAINED.
[/// /ﬁf /{“"f/ /ﬁ ff»u’iu

EO
SIGNERS CAPACITY SIGNATURE ¥
AAy 8 oo/ ELLEY RL{B\/ M RK LA
DATE ' NAME OF SIGNER (TYPED OR PRINTED)

55.4416 (Rev. 6/00) RDA 1678
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CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT
STATE OF TENNESSEE CE s Vg

SECRETARY OF STATE
SUITE 1800, JAMES K. POLK BUILDING

NASHYILLE, TN, 37243-0306

10/01/99

AMOUNT DUE - 520,00

CURRENT FISCAL YEAR CLOKING MONTH 08 IF BIFFERENT.

THIS REPORT IS DUE ON OR BEFORE

OR FEDERAL EMPLOYER 'DENTIFICATION NUMBER. 62-6073178
{28 ) STATE GR COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

TENKESSEE

CORRECT “ONTH IS __
{1} SECRETARY OF STATE CONTROL NUMBER
'2A} NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS OF CORPORA™ O

0078651

(2C.) ADD OR CHANGE MAILING ADORESS:

3% for

REMPHIS PLANNED PARENTHOOD. INC.

1407 UNION AVENUE

NEMPHIS. TN 3810y
) lll'll'Ifl!I!il"lilll'"'lll'll"!l|lll“llll'l'llll'"lll'l'

[ 04/19/1939 NON-PROFIT

A PRINCIPAL ADDRESS INCLUDING CITY, STATE. Z1P CODE.
1407 UNION AVENUE, MEMPHIS, TN 38104
B. CHANGE OF PRINCIFAL ADDRZ 21

STREET
* * BLOCKS 4A AND 4B MUST BE COMPLETED OR THE ANNUAL REPORT WILL BE RETURNED * *

OF THE PRESIDENT. SECRETARY AND OTHER PRINCIPAL CFFICERS.
LSOV STATEZP COPE o8
5 7o) FEY-77

{3}
g STATE ZIP CODE + 4

(4] A NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRTSS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE,
(ATTACH ADDITIONAL SH==F 't NECESSARY.)

TIILE —NAME DUNNESS ADDRESS
ot TEANNE CRAY CARR /407 HUniion) AvEs_ 3% Lo Meampis
SECRETARY Y 477,{0&52} ) !
[Osame A3 aBove [ wone

B BOARD OF DIRECTORS (NAMES. BUBINESS ADDAEES INCLUBTNG ZiF COBE] TATTACH ADDITIONAL SIEET 17 NECESSARY
OR LISTED BELOW: MAME BUSINESS ADDRESS SITY, STATE, 2P CODE + &
~vF
. ks
SEE ATTACHED - S
- p— T
£ o
hr o W i 3 " ]
B
I3 LA T -0
;_. 'Sl . ;(';[
r PULL Y o Y
(5] A NAME OF REGISTERED AGENT AS APPEARS ON BECRETARY OF STATE RECORDS: _ s 8 I
RENEE GREER 2 A I
o B REGISTERED ADTRESS A5 APPEANS ON SECRETARY OF STATE &ECCROS: I 2 Pt
: SUITE 700, 80 MONROE AVE., MEMPHIS, TN 38103.2467 ~ I
18] INDICATE BELOW ANY CHANGES TO THE REGISTERED AGENT NAME AND/OR REGISTERED OFFICE, =
- m

7

(BLOCK LA AND/OR 5B.) THERE |3 AN ADDITIONAL K28.08 REQUIRED FOR CHANGES MADE TO YHIS INFORMATION,

TN FT03-Z1E7

A cuance of accariniv acani- [/ i/ 21 G @‘&4 550
B_cuance or reaistinen ornck: SK/TE 700, H0 Slon/ Ko Ave, M ENPHIS
SYREET CITY s;ns = ZP CODE + 4 COUNTY
. N v - .
UR NONPROF(T CORPORATION IS A PUBLIC BENEFIT OR A
CJrusLic

v
i

1
I
]

{7) A THIS BOX APFLIES ONLY YO NONEROFIT CORPORATIONS. OUR RECORDS REFLECT THAT YO
MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION AS INDICATED: IF BLANK OR CHANGE, PLEASE CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX:
PUBLIC ' . ' [ JMUTUAL
B IF A TENNESSEE RELIGIOUS CORMORATION, PLEASE CHECK BOX UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. - CIREUIGIOUS
(8} SIGNATURE I {9} DATE
CFasent Thay ﬁA/L- 7-/-9¢
(1) TETLE OF SIGNER
CEY ) FIRESI PENT

{10) TYPE PRINT NAME OF slsnzn:é,

TEANNE

ea¥ Carre
| (&
* * THIS REPORT MUST BE DATED AND SIGNED * *

&R
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Memphis Planned Parenthood .
Board of Directors Roster -
1999 1040

Ms Carol Bamen

5340 Haymarket Road

Memphis. TN 38120

wi, 226.1273

wk fax- 526.0174

hmy 035-7268

hm fax 794-1765

Prosect Coordinator. Memphis Club. Foundation and
Executive Director. Concents [nternational

White:Female

Ms. Debbie Binswanger
8257 Beekman Place
Germantown, TN 33139
hm: *54-6%60

hm fax: 7331209
Communtry \olunteer
White Female

The Rev. Burton Carley

172 Ericson Road

Cordova, T 18018

wk: 526-8631

wk rax: 526.3632

hm: 7561848

Minister, Church on the River
White Male '

Ms Karen M. Carothers

PO "Jox 111348

Memphis, TN 38111

wh: 3234095

fax: 3233264

Executive Director, United Methodist
Neighborhood Centets of Memphus
African-American Female

Michzel Ching

Univ. of Metnphis, South Campus #47
Memphis, TN 38152

wk:678-2706

fax: 678-3506

Artistic Director, Operz Memphis
Asian-Amernican Male

Ms. Bridget Chisolm

35 Union Avenue, Sute 301
Memphis, T 38103

wk: 529-0030

hm: 521-6507

Managing Parmer, Delta Bluff LLC
African-American Fernale

Barbara Buncan-Cody, M.D.
1174 Poplar Avenue
Memphis, TOv 38103

wk: 278-1412

OB/GYN
African-American’Female

Irm Edebman, Treasurer
MHS Yass

Memphis, TN 23129

hm:

wk: 761-9506

Aralyst, Highland Capual

M.t Foschini, Ph.D.
209 5. Edgewood Sireet
Memphis, TN 38104
wik: 726.1284

wk fax: 726-4396

hm: 272-8669

Clenical Psychologist
White. Female

Nancy Fuller. M.D.

" 330 Crestmont Cove

Cordova, TN 38018
hm: 757-79352

LT UTMG
White-Femiale

Ms. Gail P. George

2719 Qukleigh Lane

Germantown, TN 38118

Hm: 753-4060

Fax: 7534787 o
ConsultantLondon Bridges Antiques m
White-Fernale st

l.ee House, J.D.Ph.D.

2221 Hickory Crest Drive 2

Memphis, TN 38119 =
wk: 678-3973 o
wk f1x; 678-3526 Mg
hm: 758-0769 Za

Assistant VP of Student Affairs, Un!;;rsiry
of Memphis
Alrican-American/Male

Ms. Patricia Howard, Secretary

Girls, Inc.

152 Beale Street

2™ Floor . .
Memphis, TN 8103 &
wk: 523-0217, ext. 207 .
fax: 523-0456 o
Aftican-American/Female

Ms. Janice Isenbere

8576 Woodlane Drive
Germantown, TN 38138-7713
hm: 7549396

fax: 624-2716 _
Psychotherapist; Mediator
White/Female
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Ms. Linda Morris Johnson

2220 North Parkway

Memphis, TN 38112

wk: 577-7333

hm: 458-4586

Physician, Yeteran's Administration
African-Amernican Female

Ms, Angie King

147% Goodbar Avenue
Memphis, TN 38104
hm. 7228719

wk: 274-2107
Architect
White/Female

Barbara Lapides. Esq.

Hanover, Walsh, Jalenak & Blair
22 North Front Street. 5 Floor
Memphis, TN 38102

wk: 326-0621

wk fax: §21.9759

hm: 761-0698

White/Female

Sher Lipman. Esq.

1737 Faxon Avenue

Memphis, TN 38112

wk. 324-5108

hm:. 278-7137

Attomey, Burch, Porter & Johnson
White. Female

© Ms Keenon MeClov

1235 North Main, Room 414
Memphis, TV 38102

wk. 576-68136

Deputy Dhircctor, Divispon of Public Services, iy of

Memphis
White. Female

Jesse McClure, Ph.D3. Vice Charr

6419 Candlewood Cove

Memphis, TN 38119 -

wk: 942-7305

hm: 6800417

VP of Academic Affars, LeMovne-Owen College
Afncan-Amenca "ie

Ms. Snow Morgan
6830 Massey Lane
Memphis. TN 38120
lun: 685-8091
Community Vaofuntcer
White Female

Linda Nichols, Ph.DD.

© 2033 Hallwdpd Brite -

Memphis, TN 38107
wk: 523-8990 exs. 5087
hm: 278-1213

Director, Interdisciplinary Team Training, Veteran's

Administration Medical Center
White. Female

Ms. Stacey Powell

4344 Oid Forest Road

Memphus, TN 381258

w': 372-5439

per: 337-5603

hm: 7554155

Director of Nursing. LeBonheur Children’s Medical
Center )

Afncan-American Female

Ms. Bess Schaberg
238 Lombardy Road
Memphis, TN 38111
hm: 458-9100
Community Volunteer
White Female

Jonathan Scharff, Esq.
Harris. Shelton. Dunlap & L obb

One Commerce Square, Swite 2700

Memphis, TN 32103
wiz 525.14558
White Malc

M¢ Stephamie Sklar
NBC Capital Markets Cironp, Inc.
R50 Rudge Lake Boulevard, Smite 400

Merphis, TN 18120 ‘ P s
wk 842.377) o N
fax. 842-376) ; 2
hm. 763-0557 - 3
Account Executive . -2
White Female - :
Ms. Dorchelle Terrcil Spence ::;
8 South Third Street, Sutte 400 z N
Memphis, TN 18103 -~ 8
wk: 7220260

Cfax: 527-1642

hm: 272-1236 '
Public Relatons Marketing  #
Black. Fernale L

Kathryn E. Story. Esq.

482 Cherry Road

Memphus, TN 38117

wk. 678-2997

fax: 673.4534

Asst. Dean for Judicial Affawrs,
Umversity of Memphis
WhiteFemale
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“

Ms. Baylor *edbetter Stovalt
236 5t. Andrews Fairway
Memphis, TN 38111
wk: 767-2800
fax: 767-3828
hm: 821-0513
_ Business Owner Ledbetter Lusk Gallery
Whitv Female

Pegg: Veser, BEd. DL RN, CF

College of Nursing '

877 Madison Avenue

Memphis, TN 38163

wh: 448-7464

fax: 448-4121

hm: 685.5460

Assoc. Dean for Acadenuc Affairs, D Unnerain
Health Services

White/Female

Ms. Enicka Wojack. Board Chaar

8521 Beaverwood Dmve
Germantown, TN 38118

wk: 759.9490

fax: 755-7050

Consultant, The Saltsbury Group. [ LC
White:Female

Legal Counse]

Lucien Pera, Esq.

Armstrong, Allen. Prewatt, Gentry. Johnston, and
Hoimes

20 Monroe, Suite 700

Memphis, TN 28102

whk §24-4342

fax. 5244918
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| Secretary of State

Division of Business Services

312 Eighth Avenue North TR L —
6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower TELEPHONE CONTACT: (615) 741-2286
: FILE DATE/TIME: 09/26/07 0808
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 EFFECTIVE DATE/TIME: 09/26/07 1630

CONTROL NUMBER: D078651

T0:

PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS
REGION, INC.

1407 UNION AVE/#300

MEMPHIS, TN 38104

RE: ‘
PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION, INC.
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER

THIS WILL ACKNOWLEDGE THE FILING OF THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT WITH AN
EFFECTIVE DATE AS INDICATED ABOVE.

WHEN CORRESPONDING WITH THIS OFFICE OR SUBMITTING DOCUMENTS FOR
FILING, PLEASE REFER TO THE CORPORATION CONTROL NUMBER GIVEN ABOVE.

PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT THIS DOCUMENT MUST ALSO BE FILED IN THE OFFICE
OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS IN THE COUNTY WHEREIN A CORPORATION HAS ITS
PRINCIFAL OFFICE IF SUCH PRINCIPAL OFFICE IS IN TENNESSEE.

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

FOR: ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TGO THE CHARTER ON DATE: 09/26/07
o FEES

FROM: RECEIVED: $20.00 $0.00

MEMPHIS REGIONAL PLANNED PARENTHOOD INC ‘ -

1407 UNION AVE, TOTAL PAYMENT RECEIVED: $20.00

3RD FLOOR - _ -

MEMPHIS, TN 381064-3671 RECEIPT NUMBER: 00004273045

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 00319176

RILEY C. DARNELL
SECRETARY OF STATE
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L4 of we%g | For Office Use Only
"t Hhep
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
Bepartinent of Sute TO THE CHARTER
Corporate Fitings (Nonprofit)
312 Eighth Avenue North

6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower
Nashville, TN 37243

CORPORATE CONTROL NUMBER (IF KNOWN) 0078651

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 48-60-105 OF THE TENNESSEE NONPROFIT
CORPORATION ACT, THE UNDERSIGNED CORPORATION ADOPTS THE FOLLOWING ARTICLES
OF AMENDMENT TO ITS CHARTER:

1. PLEASE INSERT THE NAME OF THE CORPORATION AS IT APPEARS OF RECORD:

Memphis Regicnal Planned Parenthocd, Inc.
IF CHANGING THE NAME, INSERT THE NEW NAME ON THE LINE BELOW:
Planned Parenthood Greater Memphig Reglon, Inc.

2. PLEASE MARK THE BLOCK THAT APPLIES:

{1 AMENDMENT IS TO BE EFFECTIVE WHEN FILED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

K] AMENDMENT IS TO BE EFFECTIVE, 7/1/07 (MONTH, DAY, YEAR)
(NOT TOBE LATER THAN THE 90TH DAY AFTER THEDATE THIS DOCUMENTISFILED. )}FNEITT-IERBI(OCKISCHECKED
THEAMENDMENTWHL BEEFFECTIVEAT THE TIME OF FILING.

3. PLEASE INSERT AN‘:'J fHAN GES THAT APPLY:
A. PRINCIPALADDRESS:

STREETADDRESS

ciTY STATE /COUNTY
B. REGISTEREDAGENT:
C. REGISTEREDADDRESS:

STREET ADDRESS
TN
cmY STATE ZIP CODE

0. OTHER CHANGES:

4. THE CORPORATION IS A NONPROFIT CORPORATION.

5. THE MANNER (IF NOT SET FORTH IN THE AMENDMENT) FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF ANY EX-
CH&EE, RECLASSIFICATION, OR CANCELLATION OF MEMBERSHIPS IS AS FOLLOWS:

6. THE AMENDMENT WAS DULY ADOPTED ON 6/23/07 (MONTH , DAY, YEAR)
BY (Please mark the block that applies):

El THE INCORPORATORS WITHOUT MEMBER APPROVAL, AS SUCH WAS NOT REQUIRED.

[} THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITHOUT MEMBER APPROVAL, AS SUCH WAS NOT REQUIRED.

[J THE MEMBERS

7. INDICATE WHICH OF THE FOLLOWING STATEMENTS APPLIES BY MARKING THE APPLICABLE
BLOCK.:

[J ADDITIONAL APPROVAL FOR THE AMENDMENT (AS PERMITTED BY §48-60-301 OF THE
TENNESSEE NONPROFIT CORPORATION ACT) WAS NOT REQUIRED.

ADDITIONAL APPROVAL FOR THE AMENDMENT WAS REQUIRED BY THE CHARTER AND WAS

OBTAINED. ol
SIGNER'S CAP; SIGI@URE /
DATE? f 7 NAI;% OAF%()}QN;! (T%ﬁ%R%RI%ED)

§5-4416 (Rev. 10/01) Fiing Fee: $20 RDA 1678
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MAY 24, 1972 P-54, PAGE 2785

RESTATED CHARTER OF
THE MEMPHIS ASSOCIATION FOR PLANNED PARENTHOOD, INC.
Under Section 48-304 of the GENERAL CORFORATION ACT

PART I

(a) The name of ﬁhe ébi;zration”ié The'Mémphis
Association For Planned Parenthood, Inc.

{(b) The duration of the corporation is perpetual.

{c) The address of the principal office of che
corporation in this state shall be in Memphis, Shelby County,
Tennessee, | |

(d) The corporation is not for pfofit.

(e) The purposes for which the corporation is
or janized are: (a) to p:omota public accaptahce, intereast
and involvement in planned p#xanthbod through education and
public relations; and (b) to promote, develop and implement
appropriate family planning services.

{(f) The corporation is to have no members.

(g) The business and qfﬁﬁira of the corporation
shall be managed by its Board of Dixectors.

(h) The Becard of Directoxs may, at any time, volun~
tarily dissolve the corperation by conveyance of its assets
and property to the State of Tennessee, any county or munici-

pality of the State or to any other corporation holding a
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M..Y 24, 1972 P-54, PAGE 2786

purposes similar to those of the conveying corporation.

Whenever there has been no meeting of the Board
of irectors for a period of five (5) years or more, and
necavse of the death of Directors or the condition of the
corporate records it is impossible to notify a sufficient
number of Directors to constitute a guorum, notice of a
meeting of the Board of Directors may be made by publication
in some newupaper in the county where such corporation has
its principal location, at least thirty (30) days before
such meeting shall be held. The Directors attending such
meeting shall be deemed to constitute a quorum for the
purposes of electing directors or trustees, and authorizing
such directors or trustees to dissolve the corporation and
convey its property and assets in accordance with Tennessee
Code Annotated Title 48 Section 1120,

PART II

———————

(a) The date the original charter was filed by

the Secretary of State is April 19, 1939,
(b) The restated Charter restates the text of
the original Charter, as amended, by deleting the Charter,

as amended, and substituting this Restated Charter therefore.
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P-54, PAGE 2787

I, JCE C, CARR, Secretary of State, do hareby certify
that this amendment to charter, with certificate attached, the
foregoing of which is a true ccpy, was this day registercd and

certified to by me, This the 24th  day of May, 1972,

JCE C. CARR,

SECRETARY CF STATE

FEE: $ 10,00
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BYLAWS
Planned Parenthood Greater Memphis Region, Inc. (PPGMR)
Approved by the Board June 29, 2015

ARTICLE |
NAME

The name of this organization shall be Planned Parenthood Greater Memphis Region, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as “PPGMR"), unless changed by a majority vote of the Board.

ARTICLE Il
PURPOSE

Section 1. The purpose of PPGMR shall be in harmony with that of Planned Parenthood
Federation of America, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “PPFA”), which is “...to provide comprehensive
reproductive and complementary health care services in settings which preserve and protect the
essential privacy and rights of each individual, to advocate public policies which guarantee these rights
and ensure access to such services, and to provide educational programs which enhance understanding
of individual and societal implications of human sexuality.” This organization shall seek to be a leader in
providing and defending comprehensive sexual health care services in the Mid-South and engaging in
other activities that are consistent with, and related to, this purpose.

Section 2. PPGMR shall maintain affiliation with PPFA and shall operate its programs in
conformity with accepted standards established by PPFA, and in conformity with the Standards of
Affiliation as detailed in the Bylaws of PPFA.

Section 3. PPGMR is a nonprofit public benefit corporation with no members.

Section 4. PPGMR shall not engage in any activity that will jeopardize PPGMR’s federal income
tax exemption and shall not attempt to influence legislation except to the extent permitted by Section
501 or any succeeding or related section of the Internal Revenue Code, nor participate or intervene in
any political campaign of any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE Il
NON-DISCRIMINATION AND DIVERSITY

PPGMR shall work affirmatively to achieve diversity among its Board members, employees,
volunteers, client base and donors and shall not discriminate, exclude or deny benefits to any person on
the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, gender, age, sexual preference or orientation, gender
identity, gender expression, disability, income, marital status, or any other basis prohibited by applicable
law. This policy applies to programs and activities carried out directly by PPGMR or through a contractor
or any other entity with whom PPGMR arranges to carry out its programs and activities.
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Section

ARTICLE IV
POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. The affairs of PPGMR shall be governed by its Board of Directors (“Board”) in

accordance with the Standards of Affiliation as detailed in the PPFA Bylaws. The General Duties of the
Board shall include:

Section

Work affirmatively to promote diversity and nondiscrimination in its membership,
programs, services and policies of PPGMR;

Establish policies and approve programs of PPGMR in order to assure legal compliance
with PPGMR nonprofit tax exempt status under state and federal law; and

Act in conformance and approve or disapprove actions brought before it based on
majority vote at any meeting where a quorum is present, unless a greater vote
requirement is set out in these bylaws. A quorum shall consist of one-third of the
current members of the Board.

2: Among the specific responsibilities and duties of the Board shall be:

Election and removal of directors and officers of the Board and filling any vacancies on
the Board;

Evaluation of the Board;

Creation of support and advisory groups and committees;

Selection and appointment of, delegation of authority to, and evaluation of the CEO
/President;

Monitoring the activities of PPGMR and requiring and reviewing periodic reports on
operations from the CEOQ/ President;

Fundraising for PPGMR including an annual personal give or get contribution;
Develop PPGMR’s financial and other major policies to help ensure the diversification
and growth of PPGMR funding;

Long-range strategic planning for PPGMR including its mission, policies and strategic
goals and approval of any material changes in services or new services provided by
PPGMR;

Advocacy and support for the mission and goals of PPGMR within the community and
state;

Adoption and monitoring of PPGMR’s annual budget to ensure that PPGMR is managed
in accordance with sound financial and business principles to maintain reserves and
protect the assets and investments of PPGMR;

Approval of the selection of an independent auditor’s management letter and
management’s response thereto; meet with the auditor outside the presence of staff;
ultimate responsibility for the financial well-being of PPGMR; and quarterly review of
the balance sheet and statement of financial activities;

Approval of the purchase, sale, lease or rental of assets of PPGMR;
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e Ensures plans and structures are in place to support PPGMR’s Risk and Quality
Management program, and verifies that these plans address all organizational risks,
inclusive of operational, financial, technological, strategic, client care-related, and legal;

e Final responsibility and jurisdiction over the actions of any officer, committee, or
director of the Board;

e Maintenance of a permanent record of the activities of the Board.

Section 3. The Board shall hold at least five (5) regular meetings per year, at times and places
determined by the Board, with the annual meeting to be held in June of each year. The regular meeting
schedule shall be published at the start of the fiscal year and delivered to the directors in a manner
calculated to reach them. Amendments to the regular meeting schedule may be published by written
or oral notice and may be distributed by telephone, email, mail or fax.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the Board Chair or any two
directors. Notice of each such meeting shall be given to each director at least two calendar days before
the day on which the meeting is to be held, except in cases where greater notice is required by the
Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act. Oral notice is effective when received by the director, when a
voicemail message is left on the director’s telephone, or when received by a person authorized to take
messages from PPGMR for the director. Written notice may be distributed by mail, email, or fax and is
effective at the earliest of the following: (a) when received; (b) three days after its deposit in the U.S.
mail (c) when transmission of the notice is confirmed, if sent by fax to a number authorized by the
director; or (d) when emailed to an email address authorized by the director.

Every special meeting notice shall state the date, time and place of the meeting, but except as
otherwise provided in these bylaws or the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, need not state the
purpose of the meeting. A director may waive any such notice either before or after the special meeting
in a writing signed by the director, which wavier shall be filed with the minutes or other corporate
records. A director may also waive such notice by attendance at or participation in a special meeting
unless the director at the beginning of the meeting, or promptly upon his or her arrival, objects to
holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to
action taken at the meeting. A director may participate by telephone in any special meeting duly
noticed.

Section 4. There shall be not fewer than fifteen (15) nor more than forty (40) directors, as fixed
from time to time by the Board. In general, approximately one-third (1/3) of the directors shall be
elected annually for a term of three (3) years. Directors may be re-elected for two (2) additional terms.
Thereafter, except as otherwise set out in these bylaws, a director shall not be eligible for re-election to
the Board until one (1) year has elapsed; provided however, that the Board may, in its discretion, extend
the term of any director for a one (1) year period when it deems such extension to be in the best
interest of PPGMR. All directors shall serve without compensation. Notwithstanding the provisions of
this Section, the immediate past Board Chair shall continue to serve for one year following the
expiration of his or her term of office and shall continue to be a director of the Board during that year.

Section 5. Directors shall be elected by a majority of the Board at PPGMR’s annual meeting
from a slate presented by the Board Governance Committee, or at any other regular directors’ meeting
during the year, upon the recommendation of the Board Governance Committee or by nomination from
the floor as herein provided. If there are nominations for director in addition to the Board Governance
Committee’s slate, voting shall be by written ballot. Vacancies occurring on the Board shall be filled by

3
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election by the remaining directors from candidates presented by the Board Governance Committee.
The persons so elected shall hold office until the next annual meeting, at which time they may be
elected for a full three-year term. A director elected to fill a partial term of less than two years may be
elected thereafter to serve two (2) full terms. In the event of vacancies of the entire Board (where there
is no director left to fill the remaining vacancies), PPFA or its successor organization shall designate and
appoint one or more directors or the entire Board, and after such designations and appointments, the
Board shall again become self-perpetuating in the manner set forth in these bylaws.

Section 6. A quorum shall consist of one-third (1/3) of the then-serving members of the Board.
When a quorum is once present to organize a meeting, a meeting may be later adjourned despite the
absence of a quorum caused by the subsequent withdrawal of one or more of those present. Except as
otherwise provided in these bylaws, when a quorum is once present to organize a meeting, a majority
vote of the directors present at such meeting shall make decisions on all matters.

The members of the Board or of any committee may participate in a meeting of the Board or
committee by conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all
persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this
bylaw shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

Section 7. Whenever the Board is required or permitted to take any action by vote, such action
may be taken without a meeting. If all directors consent to taking such action without a meeting, the
affirmative vote of the number of directors that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a
meeting is the act of the Board. The action must be evidenced by one or more written consents
describing the action taken, signed by each director and included in the minutes filed with the corporate
records reflecting the action taken. Action taken under this section has the effect of a meeting vote.

Section 8. Upon recommendation by the Board Chair and Board Governance Committee, the
Board Chair may request the resignation of a director who fails to support and attend a reasonable
number of Board and PPGMR events or to participate actively in work of the Board. A director may also
be removed from the Board with or without cause. “Cause” shall mean acts or omissions which in the
opinion of a majority of the Board are materially injurious to PPGMR. A director may be removed only
at a meeting called for the purpose of removing the director. The notice of a meeting called for the
purpose of removing a director must state that the purpose, or one of the purposes, of the meeting is
the removal of the director, such notice must be given in writing at least seven (7) days prior to the
meeting. Removal of a director shall be by two-third (2/3) vote of the directors present at the meeting.

Section 9. No member of PPGMR staff shall serve as a director of PPGMR.

Section 10. Any director desiring to resign shall submit his or her resignation in writing to the
Board Chair. A resignation is effective when the notice is received, unless the notice specifies a later
effective date.

Section 11. There shall be no discrimination in the selection of the Board, volunteers, or staff on
the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, marital status, sexual preference or orientation, gender

identity, gender expression, ethnicity, national origin, income, or disability.

Section 12. No director nor any director’s immediate family may be employed by PPGMR. Any
director who desires to become an employee of PPGMR shall resign as a director prior to making

4
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application for employment. No employee of Planned Parenthood Federation of America or any
affiliate, including PPGMR may serve as a director of any affiliate nor hold an elective office on the Board
nor have any voting privileges in PPGMR. Notwithstanding the above, the Chief Executive Officer of
PPGMR may serve on the Board of an affiliate

ARTICLE V
BOARD OFFICERS

Section 1. The Board shall elect a director to serve as Chair, a Vice-Chair who may also be
designated Chair-elect, a Treasurer, Secretary, and a Fund Development Chair and such officers shall be
elected to a two year term. No officer shall hold the same office for more than two (2) consecutive
terms except when one year shall have lapsed since the previous term of office; provided, however,
that, on the request of the Board Governance Committee, the recommendation of the Executive
Committee and the approval of a majority of the Board, the Board Chair may be elected for a third
consecutive term.

Section 2. The officers shall be elected at the annual meeting by the directors from a slate
presented by the Board Governance Committee, to serve for a 2-year term, or until their successors are
elected. Additional nominations may be submitted to the Board Governance Committee, or by a
director, but only with prior consent by the nominee and only after written notice at least ten (10) days
in advance of the annual meeting. In case of additional nominations, voting shall be by written ballot,
and the nominee receiving the majority of votes cast shall be elected.

If there are vacancies in office, such vacancies shall be filled by the Board from candidates
presented by the Board Governance Committee to serve until the next annual meeting.

Section 3. Duties of Officers:

(a) The Board Chair shall be the senior officer of PPGMR and shall preside at all meetings of
the Board and at meetings of the Executive Committee. The Board Chair shall appoint the
chairs of all committees, except the Board Governance Committee, with the approval of the
Board. The Board Chair shall be an ex-officio voting member of all committees except the
Board Governance Committee when convening as a nominating committee, and shall sign
all contracts and obligations authorized by the Board, or as permitted in these bylaws, may
delegate to the CEO/President the duty to sign contracts made in the ordinary course of
PPGMR’s business.

(b) The Vice-Chair shall perform all duties of the Board Chair in the event of the Board
Chair’s absence or inability to serve, or in the event of a vacancy in that office until it is
filled. The Vice-Chair shall perform such other duties as the Board Chair may direct.

(c) The Treasurer shall preside over all meetings of the Finance Committee and the Audit
Committee and shall be a member of all committees dealing with financial affairs of PPGMR.
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The Treasurer shall be the chief financial officer and shall have the custody and control of all
funds; shall cause all debts and obligations of PPGMR to be paid; and shall furnish to the
Board an annual audited statement of all receipts and disbursements of PPGMR. The
Treasurer shall furnish the directors a financial report at each meeting of the Board and
such other reports as may be requested by the Board Chair.

(d) The Secretary, at the direction of the Board Chair, shall give notice of all meetings by
letter or as otherwise provided herein, keep minutes of all meetings of the Board and the
Executive Committee, keep a record of attendance at Board meetings, shall authenticate
records of PPGMR and shall perform other duties as assigned by the Board Chair or the
Board.

(e) The Fund Development Chair shall serve as the liaison between the staff of PPGMR and the
Board on all issues related to the development of revenues other than the clinic revenues,
including, but not limited to, direct solicitations, special events and foundation grants. In
this role, the Fund Development Chair shall report to the Board on all fund development
activities and shall help to insure proper Board participation as well as provide oversight for
staff activities.

ARTICLE VI
COMMITTEES

Section 1. Standing Committees. There shall be four (4) standing committees of PPGMR:
the Executive Committee, the Board Governance Committee, Finance Committee, and Audit Committee.
The Board shall select members of permanent committees, upon recommendation of the Chair and in
consultation with the CEO. Members of Committees other than the Executive Committee may be
persons who are not members of the Board.

Section 2. Additional Committees and Task Forces. Additional committees may be created
from time to time by approval of a majority of the Board, and their members and chairs shall be
appointed by the approval of a majority of the Board. Such committees may be appointed to carry on
on-going projects, to accomplish specific tasks, or to investigate and propose action on specific matters.
All activities of additional committees shall be reported to the Board, and the conclusions and
recommendations of such committees shall be reported to the Board for appropriate action. Chairs of
non-permanent committees may be, but are not required to be, members of the Board. Special
committees may not obligate PPGMR to expenditures in excess of amounts budgeted for their work.

Section 3. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the Board
Officers, the immediate past Board Chair while he or she remains a director, the Chair of the Board
Governance Committee and one at-large member selected from the Board. The at-large member of the
Executive Committee shall be appointed by the Board Chair, at his or her discretion. The at-large
member of the Executive Committee shall serve for a term of one year and may be re-elected or re-
appointed, as applicable, to an additional term. The CEO/President shall attend meetings of the
Executive Committee as staff representative, but shall not have a vote.

The Executive Committee shall meet six (6) times per year, or as needed. Four members of the
Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum. When a quorum is present to organize a meeting of the
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Executive Committee, a majority vote of the members present at such meeting shall make decisions on
all matters.

The Executive Committee shall exercise all of the functions of the Board in the routine
management of the affairs of PPGMR during the intervals between the meetings of the Board.

The Executive Committee may not: (1) authorize distributions; (2) approve a dissolution, merger
or the sale, pledge or transfer of all or substantially all of PPGMR’s assets; (3) elect, appoint or remove
directors or fill vacancies on the Board or on any of its committees; or (4) adopt, amend or repeal the
charter or bylaws of PPGMR or act on any matters specifically reserved to the Board by law or these
Bylaws. All business transacted by the Executive Committee shall be presented at the next meeting of
the Board.

Section 4. Board Governance Committee. The Board Governance Committee shall consist
of not fewer than five members, one of whom may be the immediate past Board Chair, whether or not
such person still serves as a director. The other members of the Board Governance Committee and the
chair of the Board Governance Committee shall be elected by the Board at the annual meeting upon
nomination by the then-serving Board Governance Committee, in the same manner as directors are
elected. Members of the Board Governance Committee shall not serve more than two (2) consecutive
years. The Board Chair may be an ex-officio member or may designate a representative to work with
the Board Governance Committee, but neither the Board Chair nor his or her designee shall have a vote.
The Board Governance Committee shall meet six (6) times a year.

The Board Governance Committee shall, in consideration of the responsibilities of the Board and
the need to enhance the work of the Board, (1) develop, present for approval and implement policies,
procedures, and processes to provide efficient and effective Board governance; (2) periodically review
Board and Committee roles and responsibilities, and establish criteria for Board membership, (3)
evaluate for re-election directors whose terms are expiring, (4) develop, maintain and utilize a
recruitment matrix to identify and recruit potential new members of the Board to ensure diversity; (5)
annually develop a slate of nominees for directors, officers, the Board Governance Committee Chair and
Board Governance Committee members and present such slate to the Board prior to the annual
election, with the notice of the annual meeting; (6) nominate directors and officers to fill any vacancies
that occur before the next regular election; (7) in cooperation with the staff, plan the annual Board
retreat and provide for the orientation of new members and continuing education for the entire Board;
and (8) develop and implement procedures and tools for evaluation of the Board.

Section 5. Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall consist of not fewer than
three (3) members including the Board Chair, and treasurer. The Finance Committee shall meet four (4)
times per year.

The Finance Committee shall set long term financial goals for PPGMR, shall monitor the finances
of PPGMR and annually develop and present to the Board for approval a budget for the fiscal year, and
shall monitor staff performance with regard to financial responsibilities. The Finance Committee will
recommend the fiscal policy of the Board and may recommend investment and spending programs for
PPGMR.
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Section 6. Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall consist of two (2) members at
least one of whom must have sufficient financial literacy to understand, analyze, and reasonably assess
the financial statements of PPGMR and the competency of the auditing firm. Audit Committee
members must have no interest, relationship or conflict of interest with executive leadership of PPGMR
or the audit firm. The Audit Committee shall meet at least two (2) times per year

The Audit Committee of the Board is responsible for oversight of the audit and the organizations
book and records and the system of internal controls that PPGMR has established through the work on
the Finance Committee of PPGMR, including the risk management methodology of PPGMR. The Audit
committee shall select an audit firm to conduct an independent audit of PPGMR’s financial statements
and internal controls subject to approval by the Board. The audit committee shall have oversight of
PPGMR financial responsibilities as set by the Finance Committee and shall make recommendations to
the Executive Committee and the Board after review of audit and associated activities or other matters
that arise from time to time.

Section 7. Ad Hoc and Advisory Committees. The Board may appoint an Advisory Committee to
consult and provide advice to the Board on such matters and subjects as the Chair or Board may
request. The Advisory Committee shall meet as many times as may be directed and shall meet at least
one time per year. The Advisory Committees shall have no more than five (5) members none of whom
are directors. The Advisory Committee shall report to the Chair. The Board may, upon request of the
CEO or other Committees or directors of the Board, appoint one or more Ad Hoc Committees of the
Board to address such specific issue as may have been requested. Such committee(s) shall meet as
directed and shall have such authority as may be determined by the Chair. Members of the Board may
serve on ad hoc committees.

ARTICLE VII
FINANCE

Section 1. The fiscal year of PPGMR shall begin on July First and shall end on June Thirtieth of
the following calendar year.

Section 2. The account books of PPGMR shall be audited annually by an independent certified
public accountant as selected by the Audit Committee and retained with the approval of the Board. The
report of such accountant shall be filed with the records of PPGMR. A summary of this report shall be
presented at the first meeting of the Board after completion, and a copy shall be sent to PPFA in
accordance with PPFA Standards of Affiliation.

Section 3. Any officers and employees having access to funds of the Affiliate shall be bonded.
Any checks issued by PPGMR must be signed by one of the following: the Board Chair, the Treasurer, the
CEO/President or another staff person bonded and approved to sign checks by the Board.

ARTICLE VIl
ANNUAL MEETING

The meeting of the Board held in June of each year shall be designated the annual meeting of
PPGMR. If it should be necessary to set another time for the annual meeting, such time shall be set by
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the Board. The annual meeting will be held for the purpose of electing officers, members of the Board
and the Board Governance Committee. The directors shall be notified of the annual meeting by written
notice at least ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting by such method as provided for herein.

ARTICLE IX
CEO/PRESDIENT

Section 1. The CEO/President shall be the chief executive and administrative officer of PPGMR
and shall be responsible to the Board for implementation of Board policies, for managing all operations,
programs, and activities of PPGMR, and for the appointment, tenure, and salaries of members of the
staff. The Board shall select the CEO and establish the compensation and terms of employment of the
CEO/President. The CEO/President shall be annually evaluated in writing by the Executive Committee.

Section 2. The CEO/President, as authorized by the Board Chair, and such other staff member(s)
as may be authorized by the Board and bonded, may sign on behalf of PPGMR contracts and obligations
necessary to carry on the ordinary business of PPGMR in amounts not to exceed $20,000, except that
the CEO/President may sign monthly rent checks in excess of $20,000.

ARTICLE X
PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall constitute the ruling authority in all cases where
they do not conflict with the rules of PPGMR or with any statute of the state.

ARTICLE XI
IN EVENT OF DISSOLUTION

In the event of dissolution of PPGMR for any reason, and if at the time of such dissolution
PPGMR is affiliated with PPFA or any successor thereto, all its just debts and obligations shall vest in
PPFA or any nonprofit successor thereto, provided only that said PPFA or its successor organization shall
then, as now, be exempt from federal taxation and contributions thereto shall likewise be exempt.
Upon dissolution, any assets of PPGMR shall be distributed to PPFA or its successor, provided that PPFA
or its successor is recognized as exempt under applicable federal law, including without limitation the
Internal Revenue Code.

ARTICLE XII
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. PPGMR shall indemnify any director or officer made a party to a proceeding because
such person is or was a director or officer of PPGMR against liability incurred in the proceeding, as set
out in the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act. For purposes of this Article XI, “director” means an
individual who is or was a director of PPGMR, including individuals who have been duly authorized to
perform some or all of the duties of a director, or an individual who, while a director of PPGMR, is or
was serving at PPGMR’s request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of another
foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan, or other
enterprise. A director is considered to be serving an employee benefit plan at PPGMR’s request if his or
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her duties to PPGMR also impose duties on, or otherwise involve services by the director to the plan or
to participants in or beneficiaries of the plan. “Director” includes the estate or personal representative
of a director. “Liability” means the obligation to pay a judgment, settlement, penalty, fine (including an
excise tax assessed with respect to any employee benefit plan) or reasonable expense incurred with
respect to a proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative and whether formal or
informal. However, PPGMR may not indemnify a director or officer if a judgment or other final
adjudication adverse to the director or officer establishes his or her liability for (a) any breach of the
duty of loyalty to PPGMR, (b) acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct
or a knowing violation of law, or (c) any liability for an unlawful distribution, or as otherwise prohibited
by applicable law. PPGMR as provided by the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act; provided that the
director or officer shall be obligated to repay PPGMR the advanced expenses if indemnification by
PPGMR is not permitted as stated above.

Section 2. Insurance. PPGMR may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of an individual
who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of PPGMR, or who, while a director, officer,
employee or agent of PPGMR, is or was serving at the request of PPGMR as a director, officer, partner,
trustee, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust,
employee benefit plan or other enterprise, against liability asserted against or incurred by him or her in
that capacity or arising from his or her status as a director, officer, employee or agent, whether or not
PPGMR would have power to indemnify him or her against the same liability.

Section 3. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any
other right to which any officer or director or employee may be entitled apart from the provisions of this
Article. The amount of indemnity to which any officer or director or other persons so indemnified under
this Article shall be approved by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE Xl
BOOKS AND RECORDS

PPGMR shall keep as permanent records minutes of all meeting of its Board, a record of all
actions taken by the Board without a meeting, and a record of all actions taken by the Executive
Committee on behalf of PPGMR. PPGMR shall also maintain appropriate accounting records.

PPGMR shall keep a copy of the following records at its principal office: (1) its charter or
restated charter and all amendments thereto currently in effect; (2) its bylaws and all amendments to its
bylaws currently in effect; (3) a list of the names and business or home addresses of its current directors
and officers; (4) PPGMR’s most recent annual report delivered to the Secretary of State; and (5) any
financial statements prepared for the past three years.

ARTICLE XIV
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officer or director shall approve or participate in a conflicting interest transaction in violation
of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act. Further, no director, officer, employee or volunteer shall
use his/her position to further his/her personal business or financial interests or to further any activity
or service in which she/he has either direct or indirect financial interest.

10
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ARTICLE XV
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS

These bylaws may be amended by majority of the Board if recommended by Executive

Committee or by a two-thirds (2/3) of the Board if without Executive committee’s recommendation.
Written notice to the Board shall be provided as set forth herein.

11
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.widcpc.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors

Planned Parenthood Greater Memphis Region

(dba Planned Parenthood of Tennessee and North Mississippi)
Memphis, Tennessee

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Planned Parenthood Greater Memphis
Region (dba Planned Parenthood of Tennessee and North Mississippi)(“PPTNM”)a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022
and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and of cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Planned Parenthood Greater Memphis Region (dba
Planned Parenthood of Tennessee and North Mississippi) as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of “PPTNM” and meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
AICPA DIVISION OF FIRMS: PRIVATE COMPARNIES PRACTICE SECTION
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF CERYIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about “PPTNM’s”
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher that for one resulting form error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional oniissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individuallyor in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of “PPTNM’s” internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about “PPTNM’s” ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

UW jmﬁp%OM,PLL(
November 14, 2022
Memphis, Tennessee
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cashandcashequivalents . ....... ... ...t iniiinan..
Investments - certificates of deposit ............. ... .. .. ...,
IHVeEStENits sevoromu s i oo NN s SR VL SRR B E T 0 50 5d
PromisesiosgiVes « uesmas 5 5 5 o o o iesmsmms 5 & 5 5 3 1 & s 5 5 5 55 S
Trade accounts and othérreceivables ...................... ...
INVENTOY 5 5 5 5 5 & i smsomons 5 & % 1 o & ErEERE 5 & 5 % 3 § SRS & & 5 7 o
Prepaid expensesandother .............. ... i,

TOTAL CURRENTASSETS ........ ... ... .. ... ..

ASSETS RESTRICTED FOR LONG TERM PURPOSES .. ... ..
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT,met . ........................

OTHER ASSETS
Beneficial interest in assets held by the Community
Foundation of Greater Memphis ........... ... ... cciviiins
Cash surrender value of donor life insurance . ..................
IDEPOSILS & 5 v 5 v o svvmins 5 v v ¢ v musirvsonn 5 % 5 8 5 ¥ @ SO & 8 4 R ¢ 8 e

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accountspayable . ...... .. ... ..,
Accrued and withheld liabilities ........ ... ... .. .........
Deferred grantrevenue .............coiiiiiiieiininninnnnsn
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES . ...................

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions

Undesigriated oo vy svaimmmms s vy 2 00 e s o6 ¥ § 1 ¥ sl 5
Board-designated endowment .............. ... ...l
With donor restrictions . .........ci it e i
TOTALNET ASSETS s v ¢ w6 s o ¢ 4 6 5 & 5 ol 5 5

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS ..........

See notes to consolidated financial statements

JUNE 30

2022 2021

$12,274,816 §11,170,444

63,249 280,614
970,803 815,571
83,451 176,971
1,166,467 62,715
211,129 361,993
. 199

14.769.915 _ 12.870.080

667,000 227,000

9.274.645 _11.119.141

4,621,410 5,653,282
37,818 37,818
3,000 3.000
4,662,228 5.694.100

$29.373.788 §29.910.321

$ 202,610 § 236,166

333,233 242,898
: 43.063
535.843 522,127

22,793,740 23,127,732
4,621,410 5,653,282
1.422.795 607.180

28,837,945 _ 29.388.194

$29373788 $29.91032]
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPT)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
WITHOUT DONOR WITH DONOR
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL
Support and Revenue
Private gifisand grants . ..................... $ 6,058,701 $ 886,314 $ 6,945,015
Private gifts and grants - TAPP ... ............. 146,973 - 146,973
Patient fees, net of contractual allowance
of $646,388 . .. .. ... ... 4,621,334 - 4,621,334
Special eVENE « ius v v 5 mai v v ¥ e 4 2 v 2 53,628 - 53,628
Income from beneficial interest i assets
held by the Community Foundation of
Greater Memphis ......................... 244 507 - 244 .507
Total support and revenue ............... 11.125,143 886.314 12,011.457
Reclassifications
Net assets released from restrictions -
satisfaction of time and/or purpose
TESIIICHONS ..ottt ii i 70,699 (70.699) -
Total support and revenue and
reclassifications ..................... 11.165.842 815.615 12.011.457
Expenses
PatiCntSeEVIEES com « wine = s = s 5 s 5 wisss swss 6,792,240 - 6,792,240
Education ...........c.oiiinmniinnnnnnnns 842,571 - 842,571
Advocacy ... 882,463 - 882,463
TAPP o wis & vy w000 ¥ 5o ¥ 5005 © 008 ¥ W88 % 000 § 303907 - 303.907
Total program services .................. 8.821.181 - 8,821,181
Development and fundraising ................. 810,490 - 810,490
General and administrative .. ................. 698.485 - 698.483
Total supportservices ................... 1.508.975 - 1,508.975
Totalexpenses ..............covvvunn. 10.330.156 - 10.330.156
Other income and (expense)
Change in value of beneficial interest in assets
held by the Community Foundation of
Greater Memphis .. ..............c.civui... (1,031,872) - (1,031,872)
Interest and dividend income . . ... .. ........... 375 - 375
Reenial INCOME com » w5 suin & wesss 5 o = 0 5 2@ o 24,197 - 24,197
Unrealized loss on investments . ............... (141,106) - (141,106)
Change in cash surrender value of life
INSUTANCE . o oo it v eeeee ae et ee e e e e aaeee e - - -
Loss on disposition of property and equipment . . . . {1,083.144) - (1,083.144}
Total other income and (expense) .......... (2.231,550) - (2.231.550)
CHANGE INNET ASSETS ................... {1.365.864) 815.615 (550.249)
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year ....... ... . ... ciiiiin. .. 28.781.014 607.180 29.388.194
EOUOBYEAT & & wns « sien « s 5 e 5 oo & Surioits sgiie & % $ 27415.150 $ 1422795 § 28.837.945

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
WITHOUT DONOR WITH DONOR
_RESTRICTIONS = RESTRICTIONS ___TOTAL
Support and Revenue
Private giftsand grants . ..................... $ 5,193,396 $ 327,054 $ 5,520,450
Private gifts and grants - TAPP ................ 130,501 - 130,501
PAtentIEes « « oo o v o v ovm o s & awm @ swas < 6,710,255 - 6,710,255
Special eVENTS cooms e s s o s @ s 5 o 8 93,204 - 93,294
Income from beneficial interest in assets
held by the Community Foundation of
Greater Memphis ... ....... .. .. ... 218.813 - 218.813
Total support and revenue ............... 12.346.259 327.054 12.673.313
Reclassifications
Net assets released from restrictions -
satisfaction of time and/or purpose
TESHICHONS: & & cvus somin wivars sovan wwvon saws swms o 164.768 {164.768) -
Total support and revenue and
reclassifications ....._............... 12.511.027 162,286 12,673.313
Expenses
Pallent §ervices v o cvms vums s wwvss wias s 7,974,721 - 7,974,721
EAUCHION: s o worem v mvwsie e s s 5 et 3 732,005 - 732,005
AAVOCACY usn  vsimsws rsmwss ey wewm e wen @ FEE 5 651,394 - 651,394
AR . & o @ woses s sen sone s S © SIS 3 331.805 - 331.805
Total program services .................. 9.689.925 - 9.689.925
Development and fundraising .. ............... 794,110 - 794,110
General and administrative ................... 854314 - 854.314
Total support services ................... 1.648.424 - 1.648.424
Totalexpenses ....................... 11.338.349 - 11.338.349
Other income and (expense)
Change in value of beneficial interest in
assets held by the Community Foundation
of Greater Memphis . ....................... 902,249 - 902,249
Interest and dividend income . .. ............... 2,847 - 2,847
Rental 100mME cox 5 o 3 won v omn v vie © s & s s v 229,393 - 229,393
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments . . ......... 208435 - 208,435
Change in cash surrender value
GEEANSUTATICE oin « s o s o st o mivde  iae & wioes 4 & (1.228) - {1,228)
Total other income and (expense) .. ........ 1,341.696 - 1.341.696
CHANGE INNET ASSETS ................... 2.514.374 162 286 2.676.660
NET ASSETS
Beginningofyear .......... ... ... il 26.266.640 444.894 26.711.534
ERdOEVEAT & o suer o s « st 5 ko & it 0 Sk 6 s 3 4 § 28781014 £ 607.180 $ 29.388.194

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
DEVELOPMENT
AND GENERAL
PATIENT PATIENT FUND- AND
SERVICES EDUCATION ADVOCACY TAFP RAISING ADMINISTRATION TOTAL
Expenses
for:1 V= R SRS SO SN SO S SO $ 2,827,884 $ 428,279 $ 511,680 § 153,428 $ 493,308 $ 236,575 $ 4,651,154
Fringebenefits ........c..coiiiiiiiiiiiiinninn. 620,325 97.669 146,392 - 90.879 39,716 994 981
Total salaries and fringe benefits .. ............. 3,448,209 525,948 658,072 153,428 584,187 276,291 5,646,135
Advertising . . ...t 11,895 27,037 63,201 18,246 675 14 121,068
Advocacy / Community affaits .. .................. - - 2,134 - - (100} 2,034
Baddebt .......cciviiiii it e 109,117 - - - - - 109,117
Bank charges and creditcardfees ................. 40,294 - - 84 352 (1,085) 39,645
Computer and internet expense ................,.. - - - 100 - - 100
Dues, subscriptions and licenses .................. 67,179 5,008 32,794 287 31,617 12,770 149,655
Equipment rental and maintenance ................ 273,979 23,492 24,609 - 68,213 15,068 405,361
General INSUrance . ... ..vviin v et e e i iienn e - - - 3,482 - - 3,482
Iterest ... s 833 - - - - 186 1,019
Lab, drug, medical and birth control supplies ........ 816,997 - - - - - 816,997
MEAIS 5o veer s wnnas o v ey D es B BA0ER I DAL 2,424 587 5,903 351 1,203 210 10,678
Miscellaneous . ...... ... e 55,374 2,761 14,843 1,386 3,732 10,836 88,032
OCCUPANEY v cn smamn i v o st woe v S S oo 275,862 - - - 19,631 29,081 324,574
Office SUPDLES & covan v vy & nss o0 o o vy v 82,783 116,099 55,685 12,759 - 18,819 286,145
Outside lab and medical services . ................. 132,500 - o 5 = - 132,500
PACelectoralexpense ........c..ovivvvninninnnnn - - - 500 - - 500
Patient liability insurance . ... ....... ..o, 233,790 - - - - - 233,790
Personnel recruitment . .......... ... ..., 7,993 1,124 999 - 1,124 562 11,802
Postageand delivery ............. ... .. ..., 4,179 1,484 1,607 416 22,109 2,672 32,467
Printing and pamphlets .............. ..o, 382 618 663 3,299 19,864 153 44,979
Professional fees .............cooiiiiniininnin.. 634,098 117,264 5,566 83,293 10,539 45,628 896,388
L N L r—— - - - 12,495 - - 12,495
REPAITS smrn wo s on v o3 DAy o ¥ oy B im o - - - 2,375 - - 2,375
Telephone......... .. ... ... . ... ....... 69,687 13,051 - 8,004 10,443 3,976 105,161
Traveland mlEage . .« v an s o vowm os ey o 159,320 8,008 16,387 3,402 16,801 5,874 209,882
842 Rental building management .. . ................ - - - - - 175961 175961
Total functional expenses before depreciation . . ... 6.426,898 842,571 882,463 303.907 810490 596,916 9,863,245
Deprecialiont. wovws s s s v v s s s i 365,345 - - - - 62,636 427,981
842 Rental building depreciation .................. - - - - - 38.933 38.933
365,345 - - - - 101,569 466,914
Total expenses ... ....................... $ 6.792.240 $ 842571 $ 882463 § 303907 § 810490 $ 698485 £ 10,330,156

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPT)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
DEVELOPMENT
AND GENERAL
PATIENT PATIENT FUND- AND
SERVICES EDUCATION ADVOCACY TAFP RAISING ADMINISTRATION TOTAL
Expenses
SAlATIES wrr v s 5 208 19 15,508 T nowe o of w8E 5, 5 , $ 3,385,212 $ 409,496 $ 413,922 § 131,964 $ 525,079 $ 214,613 § 5,080,286
Fringebenefits ........ ... ... .. ... i, 610,746 72.597 109,578 - 96.968 40.146 930,035
Total sataries and fringe benefits ............ ... 3,995,958 482,093 523,500 131,964 622,047 254,759 6,010,321
AAVBEHSING 5 v s smims 490 SWERE o8 oo o 5 S50 55 29 19,026 32,828 6,800 18,499 (4.500) - 72,653
Advocacy / Community affairs . . ... ............... - - 10,435 - - - 10,435
BEtSHEt . o s v s nn. e wn wwwe s w 126,076 - - - - - 126,076
Bank charges and creditcardfees ................. 63,124 - - 84 1,408 19,129 83,745
Computer and internet expense . .................. - - - 160 - - 160
Dues, subscriptionsand licenses .................. 61,791 2,381 29,905 2,076 21,986 10,911 129,050
Equipment rentai and maintenance . ............... 252,686 20,067 24.736 - 47.390 22,821 367,700
Events and conferences ......................... - - - 1,120 - - 1,120
General INSUFANGEE: vavwn ws wws o cowrms e wovia v o - - - 1,768 - 2,726 4,494
Tnterest . ... e 1,628 - - - - 469 2,097
Lab, drug, medical and birth control supplies ........ 1,217,403 - - - - - 1,217,403
Meals oo viwms s eswms on oo e e e o S - - - 123 - - 123
MESCEIIANEOUE = s vavam v vs W s i waias o e 34,706 1,152 10,446 - 1,152 4,279 51,735
OCCUPANEY ..t e 221,710 - - - 22,606 29,232 273,548
OIficeBUPPHES = v son s wmvmmn s smsmes s s o v 101,884 131,503 25,516 4,404 - 20,909 284216
Qutside lab and medical services .................. 141,169 - - - - - 141,169
Patient liability insurance . ... ............ . ... ... 200,709 - - - - - 200,709
Personnel TECTUIMENE o vvveis 5o vimwiv o vvn o vs sv 11,960 383 797 - 348 136 13,624
Postage and delivery « . vocon vo vnni o wes v v s 5,437 1.165 934 13,153 19,116 1,596 41,401
Printing and pamphlets ......... ... ... ... ... .. 2,381 - 3,483 34,518 42,041 - 82,423
Professionalfees: . ow o o on smas o v o s 927,482 43,702 4,125 106,531 6,066 112,188 1,200,094
Rent o e - - - 9.876 - - 9.876
REPAILS . vt ii ittt ii e ie e 2 z = 2,493 % = 2,493
TelepHONE s ov o sovovms v o o yw 9 TFETss o 67,082 11,426 - 3,714 10,022 8,023 100,267
Travelandmileage .. ... innena 154,465 5.305 10,717 1,322 4,428 374 176,611
842 Rental building management . ... .............. - - - - - 265,075 265,075
Total functional expenses before depreciation . . . .. 7.606.677 732.005 651,394 331.805 794.110 752,627 10.868.618
Depreciation. s v vo. s v voat ¥ S8 55 HLbe fe B 368,044 - - - - 62,754 430,798
842 Rental building depreciation . ................. - - - - - 38,933 38933
368.044 - - - - 101,687 469.731
Totalexpenses .. ........................ $ 7974 721 $ 732005 $ 651394 §$ 331.805 $ 794110 $ 854314 $ 11,338,349

See notes to consolidated financial staternents

G£959805V9V4-€9£6-6667-0229-298832 14 ‘Al @dojaauz ubignooq
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION

(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) innetassets ...............cc i,
Contributions restricted for long term purposes .................
DIePreciation c s« covmmmasa s o8 55 SUsvns b5 555 8 Ganemmn 580 2 5 £ 5

Change in value of beneficial interest in assets held by the
Community Foundation of Greater Memphis ..................
Change in cash surrender value donor insurance ................
Non-cash stock contributions . ...................co ..
Unrealized (gain) loss in investments . ........................
Bad: debbprovISION s s 5 & « « vrsmen % 8 5 & ¥ 5 seswees & 5 5 & # @
Loss on disposal of fixed assets ............c.ciiiinann..

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivablesandother. . . ............. ... ...
Promisestogive .............cu... S 8 R S § S S ¥ 8
ITIVEIEOTY: 2 5 3 5 sivarardi 5 5 ¥ 5 & QSRS § 2 8 & 8 odiieniisls » 3 5 4 5 L3
Prepaid expensesand other . ............ ...,
ACCOMNIE DAVADIC (v = = + » 4 woossarans 5 & & 5 ¥ Bisoscied ¥ ¥ 5 & & noi
Acerued and withheld Habilities . . v s v « « ¢ sssswacns s 5 4 5 5 5 5w
Defctred orafit TEVENUE & ;& ¢ & & st s 5 5 % 8§ Siieloiopie 65 4 5 5 5 & vislh
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING

BRETINVEITTER: s s 5 5 5 ¢ 0 v onsmowss 1 5 & 4 6 5 oo 5 4 5 § & ¥ s

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in assets restricted for long-term purposes ..............
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment ..............
Payments for purchase of property and equipment . ..............
Payment for purchases of investments ........................
Proceeds from maturities of investments ......................
Proceeds from beneficial interest .............. ... ... ...

NET CASH (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES .....

CASH FLLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes .................

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ..............

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OEXNBAR o onvmnnm © 5 5 5 % 5w 5 & § 5 SESsssams 5 6 5 § § &6 oEme

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ........

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH
FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES - NONE

AMOUNTS PAID FORINTEREST ...............cc0v0enunnan

See notes to consolidated financial statements

_YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
2022 2021

$ (550,249) $ 2,676,660
(440,000) -
466,914 469,731
787,365  (1,121,062)

- 1,228

(78,598) (241,373)
141,106 (208,435)
109,117 126,076
1,083,144 .
(197,647) (51,216)
93,520 (148,162)
150,864 (73,243)
1,772 20,581
(33,556) 74,887
90,279 52,679
(43.007) (260.046)
1.581.024 1.318.305
(440,000) ’
823,769 ;
(1,544,553) (572,442)
(217,740) (280,614)
217,365 277,789
244,507 218.813
(916.652) (356.454)
440.000 -
1,104,372 961,851
11170444 _10.208.593
$12274816 $11.170.444
$ -, % 443
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PURPOSE - Planned Parenthood Greater Memphis Region {dba Planned Parenthood of Tennessee
and North Mississippi) (“PPTNM™), which is affiliated with Planned Parenthood Federation of
America, is a not-for-profit corporation engaged in providing education and medical treatment
options to individuals concerning reproductive and health related decisions in forty-two counties
surrounding the Memphis, Tennessee region. Public funding comes from state and local
governments, During 2017, PPTNM created a single member limited liability company (“LLC”) to
effectuate the purchase of abuilding property. Inaddition, PPTNM has an economic and controlling
financial interest in Tennessee Advocates for Planned Parenthood (“TAPP”) due to its ability to
exercise control over those elected to and/or serving on the board of directors of TAPP, an advocacy
nonprofit entity. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the activities of the
LLC, TAPP and PPTNM and any intercompany transactions have been eliminated in these
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - PPTNM follows Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification (“FASB ASC”) 958-205 - Not-for-Profit Organizations - Presentation of
Financial Statements, as amended and updated by Accounting Standards Update 2016-14 for the
presentation of its consolidated financial statements. PPTNM reports information regarding its
financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: without donor restriction and
with donor restriction. Donor restricted net assets at each year end are generally available for use
during the next fiscal year.

FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION - The costs of providing various programs and other activities have
been summarized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statements of Activities and in the
Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefitted using various methods of allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applicd. Such methods include allocations based upon estimates
of time and effort, square footage usage and/or other reasonable methods. These allocations
represent estimates by management and it is at least reasonably possible that a change in the
estimates will occur in the near term.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - Trade accounts receivable are recorded as the services are
rendered and are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts, if any, through a charge to operating
expense and a credit to the allowance for doubtful accounts based upon its assessment of the current
status of individual accounts. PPTNM does not assess finance charges on past-due amounts. Past-
due amounts are determined based upon the original invoice date. The allowance for uncollectible
trade accounts reccivable is based upon a review of fees receivable, past experience, current
economic conditions and other pertinent factors which form a basis for determining the adequacy
of'the allowance. The allowance represents an estimate by management based upon these and other
factors and it is at least reasonably possible that a change in the estimate will occur in the near term.
There was no allowance for trade accounts receivable as of June 30, 2022 or 2021.

PROMISES TO GIVE - Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenue or gains in the
period received as assets, decreases of liabilities or expenses depending upon the form of benefits
received. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions upon which they depend
are substantially met. An allowance for uncollectible promises to give is determined based upon
management’s review of promises receivable, past experience, current economic conditions and
other pertinent factors which form a basis for determining the adequacy of the allowance. There was
no allowance for uncollectible promises to give as of June 30, 2022 or 2021.

INVENTORIES - Inventories represent contraceptive, medical and lab supplies and are valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value using the average cost method.

INVESTMENTS - Investments consist of various bank certificates of deposit which have initial
maturity dates ranging from six to twelve months, and marketable securities. Investments in
certificates of deposit are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Investmentsinmarketable
securities with readily determinable fair values are reported at their fair values in the consolidated
statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets.
Investment income and gains restricted by a donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
if the restrictions are met (either by passage of time or by use) in the reporting period in which the
income and gains are recognized.

ENDOWMENTS - PPTNM’s Endowment Fund was established to support PPTNM and its mission
over the long-term. PPTNM follows the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
of 1972 (“UPMIFA”) and its own governing documents. UPMIFA requires the historical dollar
amount of a donor-restricted endowment fund to be preserved. In the absence of donor restrictions,
the net appreciation on a donor-restricted endowment fund is spendable under UPMIFA. PPTNM’s
donors have not placed restrictions on the use of either the original contributions or the investment
income and net appreciation resulting from endowment funds.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

ENDOWMENTS - CONTINUED

Certain contributions may be received subject to gift instruments or other specific agreements. The
Board of Directors has the ability to distribute so much of the original principal of any trust or
separate gift, devise, bequest, or fund as the Board in its sole discretion shall determine, assuming
no other restriction. As aresult of the ability to distribute the original principal, all contributions not
classified as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted are classified as unrestricted net assets
for financial statement purposes.

PPTNM has adopted investment and spending policies, approved by the Board of Directors (or
Endowment Fund Committee), for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream
of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power
of these endowment assets over the long-term. All endowment assets have been previously
transferred to the Community Foundation of Greater Memphis (the “Community Foundation) under
the policies and procedures and investment practices of the Community Foundation. PPTNM’s
spending and investment policies work together to achieve this objective.

The spending policy calculates the amount of money annually distributed from PPTNM’s
endowment fund for operations. The current spending policy is to allow distributions of 5% of the
value of the endowment assets. Accordingly, over the long-term, PPTNM expects its current
spending policy to allow its endowment assets to grow. This is consistent with the PPTNM’s
objective to maintain the purchasing power of endowment assets as well as to provide additional real
growth through investment return.

All endowment assets are considered unrestricted board-designated and are presented as beneficial
interest in assets held by the Community Foundation with earnings on such accounts presented as
“change in value of beneficial interest.” 1t is PPTNM’s policy to annually designate the fair value
of the endowment assets held by the Community Foundation as board-designated.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Property and equipment acquired by PPTNM is considered to be
owned by the organization. However, governmental granting agencies may maintain a reversionary
interest in the property purchased with grant monies. Such property shall not be disposed of without
written approval from these agencies.

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, plus the cost of those additions and improvements
which materially increase the useful lives of the assets. Donated property and equipment are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of gift. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed
as incurred.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPT)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - CONTINUED

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

BUsTAIE wpmmo o5 0 v 5 0 somom 55 5 ¢ 5 5 5 omumenmy 5 0 5 52 5 5 4 sBww 9 B 342 30 years
Furniture and equipment ................ ... ... ... 5 - 10 years
Leaschold improvements « .« sesvs svmev drasssn s wmsm isi s S years

COLLECTIONS - PPTNM has adopted a policy of not capitalizing contributions of collections in
accordance with FASB-ASC 958-605, Not-for-Profit Entities - Revenue Recognition. Collection
items consist of art transferred to PPTNM during the year ended June 30, 2022. Thes¢ items are held
for public display at PPTNM locations in furtherance of public service. These collection items are
protected and preserved by PPTNM and are subject to a restriction by the donor that requires they
be returned to the donor should PPTNM no longer wish to maintain ownership.

DEFERRED REVENUE - Cash collections in advance of the period revenue is earned is recorded
as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue in the period to which they relate. Deferred revenue
included on the statement of financial position includes cash collected in advance of performance
of required services/functions under grant agreements with PPFA and others.

REVENUE RECOGNITION - PPTNM follows Accounting Standards Update (“ASU) 2014-09,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and ASU 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities
(Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made.

ASU 2014-09 requires revenue recognition criteria to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services and requires a five-step recognition process.

ASU 2018-08 reduces the diversity in practice in how not-for-profit organizations classify grants and
contracts by clarifying whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions or exchange
transactions and whether a contribution is conditional.

Grant and other contributions with conditions are not recognized as receivables or revenue until such
time as the condition has been satisfied.

Support received or receivable is recorded as without donor restriction or with donor restriction
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Donor-restricted support is
reported as an increase in donor restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction.
When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), donor restricted net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor restriction and
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. All contributions are
considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.

Patient fees and various insurance income for billable patient services are recognized at the time the
service is rendered.

SPECIAL EVENT EXPENSES - Special event expenses are incurred in connection with PPTNM’s
activities to solicit contributions for program needs as well as for certain specific future needs and
for special events. Special event activities are a peripheral or incidental activity of PPTNM, and thus
expenses are netted with the related special events revenues in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Activities and totaled $36,402 and $11,650, respectively, during 2022 and 2021,

ADVERTISING/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS - PPTNM expenses advertising costs as incurred. Such
costs totaled $121,068 and $72,653 during 2022 and 2021, respectively. In addition, PPTNM
expenses advocacy and community affairs costs as incurred. Such costs totaled $2,034 and $10,435
during 2022 and 2021, respectively.

IN-KIND DONATIONS - In-kind donations of goods or assets are recorded at their estimated fair
market value at date of contribution.

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills and would otherwise be
purchased by the organization. There were no such donated services in 2022 or 2021. In addition,
a number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time to PPTNM. These services
do not meet the requirements for recording in the consolidated financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash on hand and in checking and interest bearing accounts. PPTNM’s policy
is to consider all highly liquid debt securities purchased with initial maturities of three months or less
to be cash equivalents.

FEDERAL TAX STATUS - The Internal Revenue Service has classified PPTNM as exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified
as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2) of the Interal Revenue
Code.

PPTNM follows the provisions of FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
This pronouncement requires that computations of current and deferred income tax assets and
liabtlities only consider tax positions that are more likely than not (defined as a greater than 50%
chance) to be sustained if the taxing authority examined the positions. There are no significant
unrecognized tax positions at June 30, 2022 or 2021. PPTNM is subject to U.S. federal tax
examinations by taxing authorities for years ending after June 30, 2018.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

CONCENTRATIONS - PPTNM maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. PPTNM has not experienced any losses in such accounts nor does
management of the organization believe there is any significant credit nisk on cash and cash
equivalents,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - PPTNM’s management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 14, 2022, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available for
issuance.

RECLASSIFICATIONS - For comparability, certain prior years amounts have been reclassified where
appropriate to conform with the consolidated financial statement presentation in the current years.

NOTE 2 - PROMISES TO GIVE

Unconditional promises to give are expected to be realized in one year or less and are classified as
temporarily restricted net assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. There were
$83,451 and $176,971 in unconditional promises to give at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

PPTNM is a partial beneficiary of a portion of two separate trusts under the will of a deceased
contributor. Approximately $225,000 has been received in prior years under this trust agreement.
Additionally, one half of the remaining estate will be received upon the death of the contributor’s
daughter. Due to the conditional nature of this gift, no amount has been recorded in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS

Investments comprised the following:

Fair Value

June 30, 2022
StOCKS & vt e $ 970,803
Certificate of deposit ............ ... ... .. ... 63.249
$1.,034,052

June 30, 2021
StOCKS © ottt $ 815,571
Certificates of deposit v vris i vmasv i 0 s smms 280,614
$1.096.185

Endowment Funds

Endowment fund net assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 aggregated $4,621,410 and $5,653,282,
respectively, and represented board-designated unrestricted funds only.

Changes in endowment fund net assets are as follows:

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
2022 2021
Endowment net assets at beginning of year ..... $ 5,653,282 $ 4,751,032
Net change in value of beneficial interest ...... (787,365) 1,121,063
Amounts appropriated for expenditure ........ (244 .507) (218.813)

Endowment net assets atend of year .......... $ 4.621.410 $ 5.653.282
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy consists of three broad
levels. Level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market prices within active markets. Level 2
inputs are based on quoted prices for similar assets in active or inactive markets. Level 3 inputs are
all other financial instruments without an active or inactive market and for which no significant
observable inputs are available.

Fair values of assects measured on a recurring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices
In Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
June 30, 2022
Stocks ............. $ 970,803 $ 970,803 $ - S -
Beneficial interest . . . . 4.621.410 - - 4.621.410
Total ........... $ 5.592.213 $ 970.803 b - $4621.410
June 30. 2021
U roTe] $ 815,571 $ 815,571 $ - $ -
Beneficial interest . . . . 5.653.282 - - 5.653.282
Total ........... $ 6.468.853 $ 815.571 $ - $ 5,653,282

PPTNM recognizes transfers of assets into and out of levels as of the date an event or change in
circumstances causes the transfer. There were no transfers between levels in the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Securities (Level 1) are reported at fair value on a recurring basis determined by reference to quoted
market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions. The fair value of the
beneficial interests (Level 3), as determined by the Community Foundation of Greater Memphis, was
based primarily at the Organization’s proportional share of the market value of the underlying
investments of the investment pools in which PPTINM has its investments. PPTNM has no Level 2
assets.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION

(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - CONTINUED

All assets above have been valued using a market value approach and there have been no changes

in valuation techniques and related inputs.

The table below presents information about recurring fair value measurements that use significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements):

JUNER0; 2021 o i vivinsmumssornrsssmmmairassns
Contributions and collections (net) ..............

Beneficial
Interests

$ 4,751,032

1,121,063

Change in value of beneficial interest . ...........
Payments from beneficial interest . .............. (218,813)
June30.2022 ... ... ... 5,653,282
Contributions and collections(net) .............. -
Change in value of beneficial interest ............ (787,365)
Payments from beneficial interest . .............. (244.507)
BT T ). SR $ 4621410
NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following:
JUNE 30
2022 2021

L oomne 56 5 5 5 5 e 6 6 5 6 6 6 ERBRE B 65§ § & B WDGHNSH 4 A &
Buildings and improvements . . v o2 5 s 6 4 s wiaie o 4 5

$ 1,740,312 § 1,638,337
8,937,107 10,238,160

E0IE THIEHES & & s 2 9 5 5 5 & b soomsss 2 9 5 6 5 & 5 PRI # 144,824 144,824
Medical instruments . .........cootiiiiinnnenn.. 151,035 137,047
Computer equipment and software ................ 257,104 257,104
FUtnitire afid FIXTUTES v v v v o o o mommmmmis o v o 0 0 s o o 625,172 625,172
Construction iIn Progress . . .. vov v e v i vnennvnons - 588,561
Mobileunitdeposit s s ses 55 s sosmmn a5 s o8 5 6wk = & 172.216

Less accumulated depreciation ; : wivssvivisisnpuazs

12,027,770 13,629,705
(2,753,125) _ (2.510.564)

$ 9.274.645

$11.119.141
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - CONTINUED

Depreciation expense totaled $466,914 and $469,732, respectively, for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021.

At June 30, 2021, PPTNM was in the process of evaluating a building donation which, if approved,
would occur during fiscal year 2022. However, the decision was made to raze the building in lieu
of donation. The building was demolished during the year ended June 30, 2022. A loss on
disposition of this building of $843,812 is included in loss on disposal of fixed assets on the
accompanying consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2022,

In December 2021 a fire destroyed a building owned by PPTNM that was undergoing significant
renovation. Insurance proceeds totaling $823,769 relating to this incident were received during the
year ended June 30, 2022. An additional $1,015,222 is expected to be received during the year
ending June 30, 2023 and is included in trade accounts and other receivables on the accompanying
statement of financial position at June 30, 2022.

NOTE 6 - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS

In prior years, PPTNM transferred funds, without variance power, to the Community Foundation,
to establish the Memphis Planned Parenthood Endowment Fund of the Community Foundation for
the benefit of PPTNM. The fund, which is valued at fair value, consists of pooled investments with
the Community Foundation, five percent of which are distributed annually to PPTNM. With the
approval of the entire Endowment Fund Committee and seventy-five percent of the Board of
Directors, PETNM may request advances from the Community Foundation.

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLAN

PPTNM maintains a 401(k) retirement plan covering substantially all employees. Employees can
voluntarily contribute to the plan. Effective January 1, 2005, the Plan was amended to allow a
discretionary matching contribution as determined by PPTNM in December of each year. For the
year ended June 30, 2022, matching contributions were equal to the voluntary employee
contributions and limited to 5% of the qualified employee compensation or a maximum of $5,000.
Employer contributions expense totaled $83,676 and $82,696, respectively, for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
NOTE 8 - RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes or periods:
JUNE 30
2022 2021
Subject to expenditure for specified purposes:
Kiox WD RIS ccov v v s v s s sinm s v oo s bosuns i a5 s $ 22324 § 34,414
Knox AB Expansion: . . . cuwescsossssmmmsasssss 667,000 227,000
TAPT . ., e mnonim on v e 2 momermsns 4 o 5 0 3 @ 3 ismcssi & 8 5 3 0 & 64,372 15,000
PPEA cosvomumuciosns i umassinss s nadm g iass 615,461 330,766
Her B ATEY u s s s 1505 mman ax s s s 56 Bonows st 5 5 53.638 -

$1422795 § 607180

Net assets were released from donor restrictions during the year by incurring expenses or purchase
of assets in accordance with the restricted purposes as specified by the donors and comprised the
following amounts:

JUNE 30
2022 2021
Restrictions satisfied:
PP E A . e e $§ 58609 § 50,420
Knox M Fly cansscsisssrunmc s s 365 50891533 12,090 84,498
ETLHRE [T & s o v 5 5 5 6 5 oot # o 3 & 5 5 6 s # 4 5 o - 29.850

$ 70,699 § 164.768

Board-designated unrestricted net assets without donor restriction consist of funds raised for the
purpose of creating an endowment to provide future income for PPTNM activities.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 9 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects PPTNM’s financial assets reduced by amounts not available for general use
because of either contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the balance sheet date.
All donor restricted amounts are available for use only for the indicated purposes as presented in
Note 8.

JUNE 30
2022 2021

Financial assets, atyearend ...................... $ 19,885,014 §$ 18,424,415
Less those unavailable for general expenditures
within one year due to:

Contractual or donor-imposed restrictions:

Restricted by donor with time or purpose

FESHACHONS - s s csawmamonyis 585 5500 05 5 5 55§ HEEs (1,422,795) (607,180)

Board designations:

Beneficial interest - board designated

enoWITenY: « ;s s susre o 5 55 5 5 5 wenwe 5 5 5§ 5 § SWES (4.621.410) _ (5.653.282)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditures withinone year . ......... $ 13.840.809 $12,163.953

PPTNM is supported not only through fees for services and related other sales, and various special
events, but also substantially by contributions received from others. Management and the board
manage resources to best utilize its financial assets in order to meet donor restrictions and meet
general expenditure obligations.

The beneficial interest in assets, while board designated as an endowment to be used for long-term
purposes, can be withdrawn for current operating needs if needed although there is no current intent
to do so.

NOTE 10 - LEASE INCOME AND LEASE COMMITMENTS

In connection with the acquisition of an office building in fiscal 2017, PPTNM assumed the position
of landlord for this building with a tenant with a lease agreement in place through May 2020. Rental
revenue from this lease totaled $197,237 in fiscal 2021. The lessee vacated the building during the
year ended June 30, 2021.The building was demolished during the year ended June 30, 2022.
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPT)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10 - LEASE INCOME AND LEASE COMMITMENTS - CONTINUED

In addition, PPTNM has a billboard Icased with rental revenue of $24,169 and $22,155 during 2022
and 2021, respectively, with approximately the same amount expected in 2023. This lease was
renewed for an additional five years during 2021,

In connection with the acquisition of Planned Parenthood of Middle and East Tennessee, Inc.
(“PPMET")} effective May 31, 2018, PPTNM assumed a lease agreement for the Nashville office
space and another lease agreement for various office copiers. The office lease was extended during
2019 until August 31, 2021 for approximately $3,450 per month while the copier leases were
approximately $2,570 per month and expired in fiscal year2021. The Nashville building’s lease was
extended in 2021 for an additional two years. Following are the minimum lease commitments under

this lease:
Year Ending June 30 Amount
2023 e 34,573
i Y I I Y. T 6.915
S 41.488

Lease expense under the above leases approximated $54,000 during both 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As an accredited affiliate of Planned Parenthood Federation of America (“PPFA”™), PPTNM pays
dues which entitles them to receive liability insurance at a lower cost and provides PPTNM selected
professional and business consulting services at no additional cost. Each affiliate must follow
established policies, procedures and protocols for the clinic set forth by the Federation as well as
follow financial guidelines in the form of ratios. Each affiliate is reviewed by PPFA periodically,
at least every four years, for accreditation purposes. Dues paid to PPFA were suspended for 2021
and 2022.

During fiscal year 2015, PPTNM entered into a Master Grant Agreement with PPFA. Funds
disbursed by PPFA under this Master Agreement are to be used by PPTNM in furtherance of PPFA’s
Commitment to the Southern Access Project (“SAP”). The SAP transactions are exchange
transactions whereby PPTNM is required to perform various services/functions under these
agreements,
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PLANNED PARENTHOOD GREATER MEMPHIS REGION
(DBA PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF TENNESSEE AND NORTH MISSISSIPPI)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - CONTINUED

Support and revenue without donor restrictions from PPFA from the SAP agreements in the
consolidated statements of activities includes $43,063 and $260,046 for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Amounts included in deferred grant revenue in the consolidated
statements of financial position totaled $43,063 at June 30, 2021.

Other grant funds from PPFA included in support and revenue in the consolidated statements of
activities totaled $893,991 for 2022 and $629,752 in 2021.
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METROPOLITAN GOVERNR? LLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY

Department of Finance
700 President Ronald Reagan Way, STE 201
Nashville, Tennessee 37210

Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County
Recipient of Metro Grant Funding
Non-Profit Grants Manual Receipt Acknowledgement

Recipient Name Planned Parenthood of Tennessee and North Mississippi

May 18, 2023

As a condition of receipt of this funding, the recipient acknowledges the following:
e Receipt of the Non-Profit Grants Manual, updated February 2, 2023,

issued by the Division of Grants and Accountability. Electronic version
can be located at the following: Non-Profit Grants Manual

¢ The recipient has read, understands and hereby affirms that the agency
will adhere to the requirements and expectations outlined within the Non-
Profit Grants Manual.

e The recipient understands that if the organization has any questions
regarding the Non-Profit Grants Manual or its content, they will consult
with the Metro department that awarded their grant.

*Note to Organizations: Please read the Non-Profits Grants Manual carefully to
ensure that you understand the requirements and expectations before signing
this document.

Signature of Authorized Representative
Name: __ Kristal Knight
Title: __Board Chair
Agency Name: Planned Parenthood of Tennessee and North Mississippi _
Date: _05/16/2023
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